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2014 30
@
02109 32,350,116 6.54
@
FMR LLC 82
(3) 10022 31,860,924 6.44
BlackRock, Inc.
52 40
02111 25,464,885 5.15
*
State Street Corp
- 89,675,925 18.14
2014 30
2014 14 SEC SC 136G
2014 10 SEC SC 136G
2014 SEC SC 136G
@
@
28255 63,763,884 25.97
Bank of America 100
Corporation
JP 10017-2070 40,272,211 16.40
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 270
94104 34,075,168 13.88
Wells Fargo & Company 420
57104 28,160,015 11.47
Citigroup Inc. 60 701
19801 20,781,602 8.46
Barclays Bank PLC 1301
- 187,052,880 76.19
2014 30
@
@

70/238



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

ooooooo
105-8011 4,173,490 18.69
Sumitomo Mitsui Card 20
Company, Limited
100-709 21 1,404,495 6.29
Shinhan Card Co., Ltd 19
135-8601 1,321,694 5.92
UC Card Co., Ltd.
549,945 2.46
W2 6WH
Visa Europe Services, 39662
Inc.
468,405 2.10
10500
Bangkok Bank Public 333
Company Limited
- 7,918,029 35.46
2014 30
2007 EIP
2014 30
EIP 16
a
a
2,732,403 92.89 39,165,266
179,933® 47.50 -
2,912,426 90.08 39,165,266
EIP
2014 30
466,733 518,810
2010
EIP
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2014
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2013

.33
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o O o o
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
97.19 94.75 136.65 200.86 22475
11,592 11,301 16,298 23,957 26,806
64.90 66.50 81.71 134.87 19484
7,741 7,931 9,746 16,086 23,239
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
218.16 215.95 215.69 22475 218.00 218.65
26,020 25,756 25,725 26,806 26,001 26,078
194 .84 205.20 208.18 211.01 208.21 209.12
23,239 24,474 24,830 25,167 24,833 24,942

73/238




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2014 12

60
71,549 132,217 203,766
103,236(D 45,058 148,294
26,584 11,192 37,776
41,944 - 41,944
47,884 10,182 58,066
11,796(2 - 11,796
7,583(3) - 7,583
3,943 . 3,943
1,575 . 1,575
14,342 - 14,342
30,183(4) - 30,183
24,683(%) - 24,683
14,683 - 14,683
42,395(6) - 42,395
14,898 . 14,898
9 O 595,803 289,963 885,766

94128-8999

8999
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Pollitt Family Trust 72,134
1991 Gary P.
Coughlan 1991 Trust 3,000 2014 29
Mary B.
Cranston Trust 6,696
8,000
4,000
Johnson Family Trust
24,683
William Shanahan Revocable Trust 41,508
138,525 2014 12
60 91,314
Byron H. Pollitt 63
2007 10
Gap Inc. 2003 2007
1990 2003
The Walt
Disney Company
Walt Disney Parks and Resorts
Ryan Mclnerney 39 2013
JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2010 2013
2009 2010 2008 2009
2005 2008
JP
McKinsey &
Company 1997 2005
Rajat Taneja 50
2013 11 2011 10 2013 11
Electronic Arts
Inc. 1996 2011
Microsoft Corporation 2011
2007 2011
Antonio Lucio 55
2013
2008 2012 2013
2007 12 2005 2007 12
PepsiCo Inc.
2000 2004 PepsiCo Beverages
International 1999 2000

PepsiCo International
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1996 1999
1995 1996 Pepsi-Cola North America
1985 1995
Kraft General Foods
Kelly Mahon Tullier 48
2014 10
2014 2014 10
2011 2014
2009 2011
2005 2009
Frito-Lay, Inc.
2002 2005 1996
2002
1993 1996 Baker
Botts LLP 1992 1993
Sidney A. Fitzwater
Ellen Richey 65
2014 2014
2007 10 2014
2005 10 2006
Washington Mutual, Inc.
1999 10 2005 10
Providian Financial
Corporation
2003 2005
1999 2003 2004 2005
1999 2005 2012 10 2013
Monitise plc
William M. Sheedy 47
2011 2013
2009 10 2011
2009 2009 10 2008 2009
2007 10 2008
2013
2007 2007 10
USA
2006 11 1990 1993
USA Ford Motor Company
First Nationwide Bank
2016 11
2014 12 12
Mary B. Cranston 66
Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
1999 2006 2006
12 2012
International
Rectifier Corporation Juniper Networks, Inc.
2014 Exponent, Inc.

GrafTech International, Inc.
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30
2002 National Law Journal
100
500
Francisco Javier Fernandez-Carbajal 59
2002
2005
Servicios Administrativos Contry S.A. de C.V. 2000 2002
BBVA BBVA
Bancomer
BBVA Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A.
1991 BBVA
1999 10 2000 1995 10
1999 10 2007
Grupo Bimbo, S.A_B. de C.V.
Grupo Gigante, S.A.B. de C.V. IXE
IXE Grupo Financiero, S.A.B. de C.V.
Grupo Lamosa, S.A.B. de C.V.
2008
El Puerto de Liverpool, S.A_B. de C.V. 2011
Grupo Aeroportuario del
Pacifico, S.A.B. de C.V. 2014

Fresnillo, PLC
CEMEX S.A.B. de C.V.
Fomento Economico Mexicano, S.A.B. de C.V.
ALFA ALFA S.A.B. de C.V.

Instituto Tecnoldgico y de Estudios Superiores de Monterrey

BBVA
BBVA
Alfred F. Kelly, Jr. 56 2011 2014
48 2014 NY/NJ
2014 NY/NJ Super Bowl Host Company
American Express Company 2007 2010 2005 2007
2000 2005
23
1985 1987
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1981 1985
MetLife,
Inc 2011 2013
Affinion Group Holdings Affinion
Group, Inc. 2005 2007 The Hershey Company
Robert W. Matschullat 67
2006 2006 10
The Clorox Company 2004 2005
2005 2006
1995 2000
The Seagram Company Limited
1991 1995
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated 1992 1995
2002 2007
McKesson Corporation
42
100
Cathy E. Minehan 67 2011
Arlington Advisory Partners
39 2007 Federal Reserve Bank of Boston
1994
1991 1994
2007 11 2012
Becton, Dickinson and Company
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company (MassMutual)
2009 2012 11 MITRE

Corporation
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Institute

Suzanne Nora Johnson

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

American International Group, Inc.

Inc.

2001
2000

AlG

Pfizer Inc.

David J. Pang 71

2007

Kerry Group Kuok Foundation Limited

AIG

South China Morning Post
SCMP Group Limited

2004

E.l.

DuPont de Nemours and Company

China

E.l.

Partners

Charles W. Scharf

49

2004
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2004 11 2007

Global Markets

Intuit

21

SCMP
2002

1995
E.Il.
DuPont Greater

2012 11
JP
One Equity
2011 JP
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2002 2004 Bank One
Corporation 2000 2002
1999 2000
Citigroup, Inc.
1995 1999
Salomon Smith Barney 2012
2012 10 SMARTRAC N.V.
2002 2005
Travelers Property Casualty Corporation 2007 10
2011 1 2003 2007 10 USA
JP
25 JP
ATM
2000
13
110
USA
William S. Shanahan 74
Value Act Capital LLC
1992 2005
Colgate-Palmolive Company 1989 1992
1978 1980
Helena Rubinstein, Inc.
1980 1981 1982
1984
1999 2009 Diageo plc. 2008 2010
Life Technologies, Inc. 2010 2012
Central European Distribution Corporation
40
1992 2005 1989 1992
2005 The

Mead Corporation

The Molson Companies Limited
Duracell International, Inc.
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John A. C. Swainson 60 2012
IT Dell Inc.
2010 2012
Silver Lake Partners
2005 2009 12
CA, Inc. CA Technologies
2004 11 2009 12
2004 2004 11 1BM
International Business Machines Corporation
1997 2004 1BM
2006 2007 10
USA 2006 2012 Cadence Design
Systems 2010 2012 Assurant Inc. 2010
2012 Broadcom Corporation
1BM
1BM 26
1BM
1BM
1BM
1BM
Maynard G. Webb, Jr. 59
Webb Investment Network
Everwise Corporation 2011 2013
LiveOps Inc. 2006 12 2011
2002 2006
eBay, Inc.
1999 2002 eBay Technologies
1998 1999
Gateway, Inc. 1995 1998
Bay Networks,
Inc. Yahoo! Inc.
salesforce.com, inc.
Extensity, Inc. IT Gartner, Inc.
Hyperion Solutions
Corporation Niku

Corporation
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2014

2014 2013 2012

2014

C > C >  HY® ¢ C H® ¢ H® ¢ Y ¢ )

2014 950,037 - 2,505,671 1,484,362 2,500,000 207,029 45,014 7,692,113
2013 870,867 - 12,999,991 6,000,006 3,574,375 47,310 759,302 24,251,851
2014 750,029 - 3,678,773 984,365 897,539 212,911 50,944 6,574,561
2013 683,360 - 4,392,120 949,981 1,410,938 65,410 77,611 7,579,420
2012 650,025 - 3,065,019 625,002 1,441,700 239,696 92,078 6,113,520
2014 750,029 - 659,355 390,647 1,181,841 39,807 861,286 3,882,965
2013 250,010 1,015,625 4,270,503 1,085,005 564,375 11,645 195,693 7,392,856
2014 639,447(6) 2,000,000(7)  8,249,921(8)  2,749,978(8) 762,293 13,572 20,331 14,435,542
2014 500,019 - 4,468,075 281,253 517,500 103,427 29,281 5,899,555
2014 2013 2012

FASB ASC 718

16
2014
ASC 718
EPS 2014 2011 11
2014 11 30 2012 11 19 2015 11 30
2013 11 19 2016 11 30
2012 11 2013 11 EPS
2014
- 1,484,373 1,021,298 2,042,597
- 984,384 2,694,389 5,388,777
- 390,635 268,720 537,440
3,299,909 281,281 886,885 1,773,771
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2014 2013 2012
FASB ASC 718
16
2014 ( VIP VIP
( ) ( ) ¢ )
2,500,000 1,966,500 533,500
897,539 679,219 218,320
1,181,841 815,063 366,778
762,293 576,871 185,423
517,500 362,250 155,250
2014
10
2014 2014
2013
50,000
2013 11 25
2014 750,000
2014
8,250,000 38,454
2,750,000 56,806
2014
2014
401
401
LTD
C O® ¢ HY® ¢ H® ¢ Yy Y ¢ Yy Y
8,722 15,600 16,626 - 344 - 383(6) 3,339 45,014
- 15,600 13,125 - 344 - - 21,875 50,944
- 17,774 10,951 9,674 344 649, 743(7) 169 ,461(6) 3,339 861,286
- 20,216 - - 115 - - - 20,331
- 15,600 8,750 - 344 - - 4,587 29,281
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2014 2014

401
2013 10 2013 12 31

2013 12
2014 LTD
21,875
)
8999

75

401

LTD
2013 12
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2014 30
2014
75
Say-on-Pay 97
2014 2013 Say-on-Pay

2014 12 12 SEC
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2013

http://investor.visa.com
2014 12 12 SEC
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2014 12 12 SEC

58
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2014
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120,000

2014

USA
2008

300,000
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2014 12 12 SEC

120
SEC

http://investor.visa.com

- SEC

527
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http://usa.visa.com/corporate-
responsibility

2013 25,000

http://usa.visa.com/corporate-responsibility

CSR

corporatesecretary@visa.com 94128-8999
8999

board@visa.com 94128-
8999 8999

http://investor.visa.com -

businessconduct@visa.com
888 289-9322 AT&T
http://www.usa.att.com/traveler/access numbers/index.jsp
https://visa.alertline.com
94128-8999 8999

http://investor.visa.com
94128-8999
8999

http://investor.visa.com
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10- 10-

ERM

10 -

SEC
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2013

Frederic W. Cook & Co.

2014

2014

100,000
150,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
25,000

20,000

15,000

2014 2013 11 19 175,000

2014 11 19

96/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OoOoOoOoOodno
15,000
2014
2014
1 2 3
D A G i [ C )
* 55,000 175,085 27,500 257,585
135,000 175,085 15,000 325,085
110,000 175,085 - 285,085
® 53,750 . 15,000 68,750
250,000 175,085 36,567(6) 461,652
110,000 175,085 - 285,085
130,000 175,085 15,000 320,085
115,000 175,085 36,908(6) 326,993
135,000 175,085 15,000 325,085
115,000 175,085 10,000 300,085
®) 52,500 - - 52,500
FASB ASC 718
16 2014 30
887
2014
2014
15,000
15,000
2014
2014 29 2014
2014
2014
2014 16,567 21,908
2014
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
@ 50,000 - 5,000 - -
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
100,000 - 35,000 - -
100,000 - 10,000 - -
@ 50,000 - - 2,500 1,250
100,000 150,000 - - -
100,000 - 10,000 - -
100,000 - . 10,000 20,000
100,000 - . 10,000 5,000
100,000 - - 30,000 5,000
100,000 - - 10,000 5,000
@ 50,000 - 2,500 - -
2014
2014
2014 29
2014 2014
2014
2015
2015
105,000
20,000 10,000
165,000 2015
180,000 2015
2015
13 15 15 15
SEC
2014 30
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2014
30
COSO 1992
2014 30
2014 30
KPMG LLP
2014 2014 30
2013 2014
5,904 1,771 6,139 1,782
704,170 211,227 732,199 212,539
SEC
10
2014 KPMG SEC

KPMG
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2013

119.27

30

2015

27

2014 11 21

2014

2014

30

)

1934

32
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193
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( )
2014 30 2013 30
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
$ 1,971 235,081 $ 2,186 260,724
1,498 178,666 49 5,844
69 8,230 75 8,945
1,910 227,806 1,994 237,824
19 91 10,854 142 16,936
786 93,746 799 95,297
822 98,040 761 90,764
11 961 114,618 866 103,288
210 25,047 282 33,634
19 1,028 122,610 481 57,369
216 25,762 187 22,303
9,562 1,140,460 7,822 932,930
3,015 359,599 2,760 329,185
81 9,661 89 10,615
1,892 225,659 1,732 206,576
855 101,976 521 62,140
11,411 1,360,990 11,351 1,353,834
11,753 1,401,780 11,681 1,393,193
$ 38,569 4,600,125 $ 35,956 4,288,472
$ 147 17,533 $ 184 21,946
1,332 158,868 1,225 146,106
11 961 114,618 866 103,288
450 53,672 523 62,378
1,036 123,564 919 109,609
624 74,424 613 73,113
20 1,456 173,657 5 596
6,006 716,336 4,335 517,035
19 4,145 494,374 4,149 494,851
1,005 119,866 602 71,801
11,156 1,330,576 9,086 1,083,687

17
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-( )
( )
2014 30 2013 30
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
0.0001 25
$ - - $ - -
A 0.0001 2014 2013
30
2,001,622 495
508 14 - - - -
B 0.0001 2014
2013 30 622
245 14 - - - -
c 0.0001 2014
2013 30 1,097
22 27 14 - - - -
18,299 2,182,522 18,875 2,251,221
9,131 1,089,054 7,974 951,059
31 3,697 59 7,037
(84) (10,019) (60) (7,156)
38 4,532 23 2,743
@ (239) @ (119)
@an (2,028) 21 2,505
27,413 3,269,549 26,870 3,204,785
$ 38,569 4,600,125 $ 35,956 4,288,472
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OooooOodd
( )
30
2013 2012
) ) ( ) ) ( ) )

$ 5,797 691,408 $ 5,352 638,333 $ 4,872 581,083
5,167 616,268 4,642 553,651 3,975 474,098
3,560 424,601 3,389 404,206 3,025 360,792
770 91,838 716 85,397 704 83,966
(2,592) (309, 148) (2.321)  (276,826) (2,155)  (257,027)
12,702 1,514,968 11,778 1,404,762 10,421 1,242,913
1,875 223,631 1,932 230,430 1,726 205,860
900 107,343 876 104,481 873 104,123
507 60,470 468 55,818 414 49,378
328 39,121 412 49,139 385 45,919
435 51,882 397 47,350 333 39,717
507 60,470 451 53,791 451 53,791
453 54,029 3 358 4,100 489,007
5,005 596,946 4,539 541,367 8,282 987,794
7,697 918,021 7,239 863,396 2,139 255,119
27 3,220 18 2,147 68 8,110
7,724 921,241 7,257 865,542 2,207 263,229
2,286 272,651 2,277 271,578 65 7,753
5,438 648,590 4,980 593,965 2,142 255,476
- - - - 2 239
$ 5,438 648,590 $ 4,980 593,965 $ 2,144 255,715
$ 8.65 1,032 $ 7.61 908 $ 3.17 378
$ 3.63 433 $ 3.20 382 $ 1.40 167
$ 8.65 1,032 $ 7.61 908 $ 3.17 378

498 520 524

245 245 245

26 28 4
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$ 8.62 1,028 $ 7.59 905 $ 3.16 377
$ 3.62 432 $ 3.19 380 $ 1.39 166
$ 8.62 1,028 $ 7.59 905 $ 3.16 377
631 656 678
245 245 245
26 28 41
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30
2014 2013 2012
) ) ( ) ( ) ) )
$ 5,438 648,590 $ 4,980 593,965 $ 2,142 255,476
(44) (5,248) 88 10,496 4 477
17 2,028 (33) (3.,936) ) (119)
@ (119) 1 119 - -
@n (3,220) 187 22,303 (23) (2,743)
8 954 (70) (8,349) 9 1,073
®) (954) 16 1,908 23 2,743
3 358 @ (835) ) (1,073)
65 7,753 39 4,652 3 358
(13) (1,551) (6) (716) @) (119)
(46) (5,486) (29) (3.459) (14) (1,670)
9 1,073 6 716 7 835
@ (119) - - 7 835
(38) (4,532) 192 22,900 5 596
$ 5,400 644,058 $ 5,172 616,864 $ 2,147 256,073
- - - - 2 239
$ 5,400 644,058 $ 5,172 616,864 $ 2,149 256,311
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( )
A B C (D)
2011 30 520 245 47 $19,907 $6,706 $(6) $ - $26,437
2,144 2,144
@ @
5 5
2,147
1 -
c 16 (16) -
16 147 147
71 71
4 174 174
O - (40) (40)
0.22 (595) (595)
A 6) (264) (446) (710)
(©)] 2 ()
2012 30 535 245 31 $19,992 $7,809 $ (7)) $ - $27,630

(¢)) A
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w[m{minln]s]s
-( )
( )
A B c C )
2012 30 535 245 31 $19,992  $7.809  $ (171) $ - $27.630
4,980 4,980
192 192
5,172
1 _
c 4 ) ;
16 179 179
74 74
1 108 108
™ - (64) (64)
0.33 (864) (864)
A
14 (33) (1,414)  (3,951) (5,365)
2013 30 508 245 27 $18,875  $7,974 $21 $ - $26,870
(€H) A
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2013

2014

@

14

30

14

30

0.40

16

(€))
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ooooooo
-(
( )
B C )
508 245 27 $18,875 $7,974 $ 21 $26,870
5,438 5,438
(38) (38)
5,400
1 -
5 ®) -
172 172
90 90
1 91 91
- (86) (86)
((1,006) (1,006)
(20) (843) (3,275) (4,118)
495 245 22 $18,299 $9,131 $ (17) $27,413
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0000000
( )
A B c C )
2011 30 62,020 29,221 5,606 \2,374,308 \799,825 \(20,992) \ - \3,153,141
255,715 255,715
(239) (239)
596 596
256,073
119 -
c 1,908 (1,908) i
16 17,533 17,533
8,468 8,468
477 20,753 20,753
™ - (4,770) (4,770)
0.22 (70,966) (70,966)
A (716) (31,487)  (53,194) (84,682)
(358) 239 (119)
2012 30 63,800 29,221 3,697 \2,384,446 \931,379 \(20,395) \ - \3,295,430

@ A
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0000000
-( )
( )
A B c C )
2012 30 63,800 29,221 3,607 \2,384,446 \931,379 \(20,395) \ - \3,205,430
593,965 593,965
22,900 22,900
616,864
119 -
c 477 @77) _
16 21,349 21,349
8,826 8,826
119 12,881 12,881
@ - (7,633) (7,633)
0.33 (103,049) (103,049)
A
14 (3,936) (168,648)  (471,236) (639,884)
2013 30 60,580 29,221 3,220 \2,251,221 \ 951,050  \ 2,505 \ - \3,204,785
@ A
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0000000
-( )
( )
A B c C )
2013 30 60,580 29,221 3,220 \2,251,221  \951,050  \ 2,505 \ - \3,204,785
648,590 648,590
(4,532) (4,532)
644,058
119 -
c 596 (59) -
16 20,514 20,514
10,734 10,734
119 10,854 10,854
™ - (10,257) (10,257)
0.40
14 (119,986) (119,986)
A
14 (2,385) (100,545)  (390,609) (491,154)
2014 30 59,039 29,221 2,624 \2,182,522 \1,089,054 \ (2,028) \ - \3,269,549
o A
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30
2014 2013 2012
( ) ( ) ( ) _( ) ) )
$5,438  \648,590 $4,980  \593,965 $2,142 \255,476
2,592 309,148 2,321 276,826 2,155 257,027
172 20,514 179 21,349 147 17,533
(90)  (10,734) 74) (8,826) 71) (8,468)
435 51,882 397 47,350 333 39,717
(580)  (69,177) 1,527 182,125 (1,690) (201,566)
20 453 54,029 3 358 4,101 489,126
37 4,413 50 5,964 ) (954)
51 6,083 37 4,413 67) (7,991)
13 1,551 (345)  (41,148) (42) (5,009)
(53) (6,321) (38) (4,532) (161) (19,202)
(2.395)  (285,652) (2,336)  (278,615) (1,757) (209,557)
(430)  (51,286) (543)  (64,764) 4 4,890
(56) (6.,679) 40 4,771 an (2,028)
107 12,762 506 60,351 270 32,203
513 61,186 702 83,728 27) (27,074)
20 998 119,031 (4,384)  (522,880) (140) (16,698)
7,205 859,340 3,022 360,434 5,009 597,423
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30
2014 2013 2012
) ( ) ) _( ) ) )
(553)  (65,956) @71)  (56,176) (376) (44,846)
- - - - 2 239
(2,572)  (306,762) (3,164)  (377,370) (4,140) (493,778)
2,342 279,330 2,440 291,019 2,093 249,632
149) (17,771 - - ®) (358)
©) (1,073) ®) (358) 12) (1,431)
- - 34 4,055 22 2,624
(941)  (112,233) (1,164)  (138,830) (2,414) (287,918)
(4,118)  (491,154) (5,365)  (639,884) (710) (84,682)
(1,006)  (119,986) (864)  (103,049) (595) (70,966)
(450)  (53,672) - - (1,715) (204,548)
(999)  (119,151) 4,383 522,760 140 16,698
91 10,854 108 12,881 174 20,753
(86)  (10,257) (64) (7,633) - -
90 10,734 74 8,826 71 8,468
- - 12) (1,431) 14) (1,670)
- - ®) (716) ) (716)
(6,478)  (772,631) (1,746)  (208,245) (2,655) (316,662)
) (119) - - 7 835
(215)  (25,643) 112 13,358 (53) (6,321)
2,186 260,724 2,074 247,366 2,127 253,687
$1,971 235,081 $2,186 260,724 $2,074 247,366
$2,656  \316,781 $ 595 \70,966 $2,057 \245,338
$ 62 \ 7,395 $ 46 \ 5,486 $ 67 \ 7,991
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2007 10 10
USA (Visa U.S.A. Inc.
USA ) (Visa International Service Association
) (Visa Canada Corporation
) (Inovant LLC )
2007 10
USA 2007 10
Visa Europe Limited
200
USA
(Visa Worldwide Pte. Limited VWPL )
GAAP
VIE
VIE
2013
GAAP
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19
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16

2013
ASU
ASU 2011-11

2013 10
2013

2013 10

2013

2014

2013 01

FASB ASU 2013-02

2014

FASB ASU 2013 04
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30 12

12

11

15

FASB
ASU ASU 2011-11

ASU

ASU
2014 10
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2013 FASB ASU 2013-05
2014 10
2013 FASB ASU 2013-11
2014 10
2014 FASB ASU 2014-09
ASU GAAP
2017 10
2014 FASB ASU 2014-12

2016 10

ASU
ASU
ASU
ASU
ASU 2014-09
ASU
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285
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12
10
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()
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oOoOooodn
2014 2013 30 145
40 P/E 1.9
2014 30
12
ATM
2014
2013 2012 143 EU GDP
143
EU GDP
20
2014 2013 30

2014 2013 30
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B USA
Discover Financial
Services Inc. USA 04-CV-07844 S.D.N.Y.
American Expess Travel Related Services Co., Inc. USA
04-CV-0897 S.D.N.Y.
USA CGC-04-436920 Cal. Super.
1:05-md-01720-JG-J0 E.D.N.Y. MDL 1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
USA C04-4276 JSW N.D. Cal.
MDL 1720
MDL 1720

USA
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2014 2013
( )
10 $ 49 $ 4,432
1,056 -
450 -
) D) i
@ } (4,033)
@ . (350)
30 $ 1,498 $ 49
(€]
20
2014 450
20
B
A B
B A
A 14
USA
USA
USA
USA
20
USA
USA USA
USA
O
USA
)
USA USA

USA

129/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

USA
USA
20
33.3333
66.6667
33.3333 66.6667
2014 26
33.3333 66.6667
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oOoOooodn
30
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
( )
$ 2,277 $ 1,071
$ 37 3 51
69 75
2,162 2,704
2,176 1,673
58 101
522 269
$ 7 $ 7
40 23

$4,580 $2,920 $2,761 $ 3,047 $ 7 $ 7

$ 145 $ 145

$ - $ - 9 6 $ 15 $ 145 $ 145

2014

20

2014
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2013 30

2013
2014 2012

35
2013
12
2013 30
2014 30

2014 30

145

15

30

53

2014
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2014
2013 30 69 75
2014 30 2013 30
( ) ( )

$2,160 $ 2 $ - $2,162 $2,700 $ 3 $ - $2,704

2,174 2 - 2,176 1,671 2 - 1,673

15 43 - 58 14 88 €)) 101

521 1 - 522 269 - - 269

7 - - 7 7 . . 7

$4,877 $ 48 $ - $4,925 $4,662 $ 93 $ (1) $4,754
(1,910) (1,994)

$3,015 $2,760

3.0
( )
2014 30

$ 1,903 $ 1,905

2,952 2,955

10 - -

10 7 7

$ 4,862 $ 4,867
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30
2014 2013 2012
( )
$ 25 $ 27 $ 17
8 5 17
() 4 9
6 2 @
1 €h) -
3) (15) (6)
$ 35 $ 22 $ 36
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2014 2013
30 30
( )
$ 103 $ 111
12
40 23
73 53
$ 216 $ 187
2014 2013
30 30
( )
19 @ $ 597 $ 253
10
164 192
35 30
51 46
19 8 -
$ 855 $ 521

(¢D) 2014
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6
2014 2013
30 30
(
$ 71 $ 71
787 766
1,197 983
76 74
1,784 1,545
3,915 3,439
(2,023) (1,707)
$ 1,892 $ 1,732
2014 2013 30
1,129 959
2014 30
2019
2015 2016 2017 2018
( )
$ 199 $ 18 $ 138 $ 80 $ 55 $ 655
2014 2013 2012
369 328 265 2014 2013
2012 198 173

132
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7
2014 2013 30 6.8
2.6 1.5
2007 10 EU
EU
EU
2014 30 2013 30
( )
$ 339 $ (162) $ 177 $ 339 $ (125 $ 214
192 (54) 138 192 (41) 151
95 (48) 47 95 (36) 59
52 (12) 40 52 (8) 44
$ 678 $ (276) $ 402 $ 678 $ (210) $ 468
$ 11,009 $ 10,883
$ 11,411 $ 11,351
2014 2013 2012
66 69 68 2014 30
2019
2015 2016 2017 2018
( )
$ 62 $ 49 $ 47 $ 41 $ 203 $ 402
2014 2013 2012
2014 170
126 60
2014
15 12
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8
2014 2013
30 30
( )

$ 199 $ 182
@ 145 145
82 60
11 27
19 73 64
114 135
$ 624 $ 613

2014 2013

30 30

( )
19 @ $ 855 $ 453
92 86
58 63
$ 1,005 $ 602
@
285

12

10
@
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2014 29

2015 28
3.0

0.07 2014 30
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397 2014
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30

65
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30 30
2014 2013 2014 2013
( )
$ 897 $ 990 $ 25 $ 32
46 43 - -
42 35 1 1
84 127 () “4)
(83) (44) (O] )
(©) - - -
$ 983 $ 897 $ 20 $ 25
$ 977 $ 892
$ 1,055 $ 973 $ - $ -
135 126 - -
10 - 4 4
(83) (44) (O) (O)
$ 1,117 $ 1,055 $ - $ -
$ 134 $ 158 $ (@) $ (25
$ 164 $ 192 $ - $ -
om ® (€)) )
(23) (26) an (21)
$ 134 $ 158 $ (@) $ (25
30 30
2014 2013 2014 2013
( )
$ 121 $ 108 $ @D $ ()
(16) (23) ®) (11)

$ 105 $ 85 $ @ $ (UD)
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( )
$ 1 $ @
) 3)
$ (6) $ ()
30
2014 2013
( )
$ (30) $ (33)
$ (30) $ (30)
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
( )
$ 46 $ 43 $ 38 $ - $ - %
42 35 40 1 1 1

(68) (61) (55) - - -
® C)) ©)) ® ©) ®

1 28 33 [6)) [€H) -
13 36 47 (€)) 3) @
€)) - - - - -

3 - 3 - -

$ 13 $ 36 $ 5 $ @ $ B3 $ @
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2014 2013 2014 2013
( )
$ 18 $ (191) $ @ $ @
() (28) 1 1
€)] - -
11 9 3 3
$ 22 $ (210) $ 2 $ -
$ 35 $ (174 $ @ $ O
2014 2013 2012
@)
4.27% 4.81% 3.85%
2.50% 2.76% 2.21%
4.81% 3.85% 4.70%
2.76% 2.21% 3.39%
@ 7.00% 7.00% 7.50%
4.00% 4.50% 4.50%
4.50% 4_50% 4.50%
@
)
)
2015
2020

50 80 25 35
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2014 30
69 29
2014 2013 30
30
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
( )

$ 22 3 26 $ 2 3 26
144 106 144 106
159 149 159 149
$ 25 3 23 25 23
767 751 767 751

$ 789 $ 777 $ 303 $ 255 § 25 % 23 $ 1,117 $ 1,055

2014 2013 2014 2013

2014 $ 10 $ 4
2013 - 4
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2015 $ 7 $ 3
2015 $ 123 $ 3
2016 124 3
2017 115 3
2018 108 3
2019 103 3
2020-2024 437 6
401k
401k 2014 2013
2012 46 44 37

401k
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2014 30 56.9 2013
2014 2013 30 3.2
2014 2013
30 30
( )
$ 961 $ 866
148 256
1,242 1,191
1,554 1,411
$ 3,905 $ 3,724
2014 2013 30
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2013 30 1.2 1.1 2014 30
39
2014 2013 2012
27 14
16
2015 41
2014 30
29
2014 30
13
2014 2013
30 30
( )
$ 1,798 $ 1,621
94 111

$ 1,892 $ 1,732
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2014
10
14
2014 30

A

B

C

@

209.15
A
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54 2012 55
2012 10
2014 2013 2012
A
A A

@
495 - 495
245 0.4121 101
22 1.0000 22
618

A
2014 A 22
4.6 4.6 4.1
A
450
B
A
2014 2013
(
)

@ 20 33
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A
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A
B
B
@
B B
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$ 161.94
$ 5,365
5.0
682
2014 10
B
2014
2014
)
$ 450
$ 215.33
2
0.4121
101
A
A



2013

2014
2014 10

2014

30

1.0
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2014
B
0.40
0.48 B C
2014 11 14

2014 12



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
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15
2014 @
2 2
A ® G W/ (B) A A B W/ (B)
A $ 4,307 498 $ 8.65 $ 5,438 631 3 8.62
B 892 245 3.63 890 245 3.62
C 222 26 8.65 221 26 8.62
) 17 16
$ 5,438
2013 @
2 2
@ @ (®) (A)/ () ®» ? ® (R)/(B)
A $ 3,959 520 $ 7.61 $ 4,980 6562  $ 7.5
B 786 245 3.20 784 245 3.19
c 216 28 7.61 215 28 7.59
) 19 19
$ 4,980
2012 @
2 2
® @ (8 A/ (B) ® @ ®) (D/(B)
A $ 1,664 524 $ 3.17 $ 2,144 678 $ 3.16
B 343 245 1.40 341 245 1.39
C 130 41 3.17 129 41 3.16
¢ 7 7
$ 2,144
@
)
2014 2013 103 2012 108
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2014 2013 2012
2014 2013 2012
EIP
RSA
A 59
EIP
EIP
10
2014 2013 2012
172 179 147
2014 2013 2012
10
2012
2014 2013 2012
4.80 6.08 6.02
1.3% 0.8% 1.2%
25.2% 29.3% 34.9%
0.8% 0.9% 0.9%
$ 4.11 $ 39.03 $ 29.65
1PO
2014
58% 42% 2013 2012
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2014
2013 10
2014 30
2014 30
2014 30
@)
(1) 2014
@
2014 2013
176 247
2014
EIP
RSA
RSU
RSA RSU
2014
199.91
RSU
2014 2013
126 98
2014
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2013 2012
1PO
2014 2% 26%
o
3,917,206 $ 72.21
435,025 201.37
(116,261) 150.56
(1,323,544) 68.45
2,912,426 90.08 5.4 $ 359
2,181,759 63.03 4.3 $ 328
2,832,053 $ 87.79 5.3 $ 356
213.37
2014 30
2012 187
65 59 86
30 17
1.4
RSA RSU
A RSA
A
A
RSU RSU
A
A
2013 2012 RSA
147.18 96.39 2014 2013 2012
197.76 146.18 96.97
2012 RSA RSU
81
RSA RSU
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)
RSA RSU RSA RSU RSA RSU
2013 10
1,697,981 649,682 $ 119.20 $119.49
609,015 226,581 199.91 197.76
(841,527) (317,343) 108.28 111.18
(156,923) (92,187) 150.85 141.67
2014 30
1,308,546 466,733 $ 160.00 $ 158.75 1.4 1.1 $ 279 $ 100
(1) 2014 213.37
2014 30 RSA RSU 127
35 RSA 1.4  RSU 1.1
2014
@
2013 10 459,899 $ 126.24
@ 278,451 225.46
(114,514) 85.05
(105,026) 177.01
2014 30 518,810 $ 177.29 0.6 $ 111
(1) 2014 213.37
)
500
2014 2013 2012
225.46 164.14
97.84 2014 2013 2012
2014 30

12
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17
2014
2013 2012 134 94 89
2014 30

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 76 $ 60 $ 37 $ 32 $ 30 $ 118 $ 353
83 63 62 61 59 130 458
$ 159 $ 123 $ 99 $ 93 $ 89 $ 248 $ 811

15
/
2014 30
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$2,924 $2,548 $2,117 $1,662 $ 1,162 $ 1,272 $11,685
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2014
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2013 2012
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10
10
2014 2013 30
2014 2013
2014 2013 2012
$ 6,140 $ 5,992 $ 1,030
1,584 1,265 1,177
$ 7,724 $ 7,257 $ 2,207
1.6
2014 2013 2012
$ 2,353 $ 568 $ 1,376
237 (58) 165
274 239 214
2,864 749 1,755
(576) 1,401 (1,276)
(3D 114 (415)
29 13 1
(578) 1,528 (1,690)
$ 2,286 $ 2,277 $ 65
2014 2013

$ 134 $ 154
14 ®)
14 14
558 1
235 226
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2014 2013

21 22

210 176
139 121
(€D) (25)
1,326 712
(298) (310)
(4,000) (4,003)
(125) (55)
12) (12)
(4,435) (4,380)

$ (3,109) $ (3,668)
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2014

2014
21

@

30 4.1

1.4

30 16
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2014 2013
30 30
$ 1,028 $ 481
(4,137) (4,149)
$ (3,109) $ (3,668)
20
2014 2013
154

2029



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
35
30
2014 2013 2012
) ) ) (D) ) )
$ 2,704 3BY% $ 2,540 3B/BYU $ 772 35 %
129 2 % 42 1% 36 2 %
(278) @ (328) G)% @57)  (A2)%
(191) @k - - % - - %
- - % - - % (299)  (14)%
- - % - - % (208) (9)%
(78) W% 23 - % 21 1%
$ 2,286 0% $ 2,277 3% $ 65 3%
2014 30% 2013 31%
2014 264
191
2014
2012
2013
2013
2013 31% 2012 %
2012
2013
2013
2013
2012
2012
2012
4.1 2012 2012
2014 2013 30 o1 142
2014 30 597
2014 2013 30 73
64 855

453
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158
0.27

2014

10

30

30
2014 2013 2012
130
0.24 0.19
740
2013 30
1.3
2014
10
45

2013
2014 2013

39 29
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5.0
2023 30
168
1.1 801
2014 2013
(
$ 1,023 $ 679
139 335
(54) (133)
199 144
O] )
$ 1,303 $ 1,023
2013
2012
2014
2012
30
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2014 2013
$ 5 $ 4,386
1,056 -
453 3
(58) (4,384)
$ 1,456 $ 5

2014 2013
$ - $ 4,383
1,056 -
450 -
@GN (4,383)
$ 1,449 $ -

2013
2014 1 14
2014 27
1.4
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DCC ATM
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2014 15
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2014 2013
2014 2014 2014 2013 2014
()

30 30 31 12 31

$ 3,229 $ 3,155 $ 3,163 $ 3,155 $ 12,702

$ 1,552 $ 2,020 $ 2,048 $ 2,077 $ 7,697

$ 1,073 $ 1,360 $ 1,598 $ 1,407 $ 5,438

$ 1.73 $ 2.17 $ 2.53 $ 2.21 $ 8.65

$ 0.73 $ 0.91 $ 1.06 $ 0.93 $ 3.63
C $ 1.73 $ 2.17 $ 2.53 $ 2.21 $ 8.65

$ 1.72 $ 2.17 $ 2.52 $ 2.20 $ 8.62

$ 0.72 $ 0.91 $ 1.06 $ 0.93 $ 3.62

$ 1.72 $ 2.17 $ 2.52 $ 2.20 $ 8.62

2013 2013 2013 2012 2013

30 30 31 12 31

$ 2,973 $ 3,001 $ 2,958 $ 2,846 $ 11,778

$ 1,751 $ 1,828 $ 1,860 $ 1,800 $ 7,239

$ 1,192 $ 1,225 $ 1,270 $ 1,293 $ 4,980
A $ 1.86 $ 1.89 $ 1.93 $ 1.94 $ 7.61

$ 0.78 $ 0.79 $ 0.81 $ 0.82 $ 3.20
C $ 1.86 $ 1.89 $ 1.93 $ 1.9 $ 7.61

$ 1.85 $ 1.88 $ 1.92 $ 1.93 $ 7.59

$ 0.78 $ 0.79 $ 0.81 $ 0.81 $  3.19

$ 1.85 $ 1.88 $ 1.92 $ 1.93 $ 7.59

(1) 2014 450
20-
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash—litigation escrow (Mote 3)
Investment securities (Mote 4)
Trading
Available-for-sale

Income tax receivable (Mote 19)
Settlement receivable
Accounts receivable
Customer collateral (Mote 11)
Current portion of chent incentives
Deferred tax assets (Mote 19)
Prepaid expenses and other cumrent assets (Mote 5)

Total current assels
Invesstment securities, available-for-sale (Mote 4)
Chent incentives
Property, equipment and technology, net (MNote 6)
Other assets (Mote 5)
Intangible assets, net (Mote 1)
Goodwill (Mote 7)

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Settlement payable
Custorner collateral (Mote 11)
Accrued compensation and benefits
Cliert incentives
Accrued liabilities (Note 8)
Accrued (tigation (Mote 20)

Todal current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (Mote 19)
Cther liabilities (Mote &)

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (MNote 17)

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
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Seplember 30, Saplember 30,
2014 M3

{im milliens, except par value data)

1971 S 2,186
1,488 a9
69 75
1,910 1,994
91 142
786 799
822 761
961 866
210 282
1,028 481
216 187
9,562 7.822
3,016 2,760
81 89
1,892 1,732
855 521
11,411 11,351
11,753 11,681
38569 S 35,956
147 $ 184
1,332 1.225
861 866
450 523
1,036 919
624 613
1,456 5
6,006 4335
4,145 4149
1,005 802
11,156 9,086

Sea accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of thesa consolidated financial statements
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—{Continued)

Seplember 30, Saplember 30,
2014 2013
(I milllens, except par value data)
Equity
Preferred stock, S0.0001 parvalue, 25 shares authorized and none issued -] — & —

Clags A common stock, 50.0001 par value, 2,001,622 shares authorized, 495 and 508

shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Mote 14) = —=
Class B common stock, 500001 par value, 622 shares autharized, 245 shares issued and

outstanding at Septernber 30, 2014 and 2013 (MNote 14) 2= -
Class C comman stock, 20.0001 par value, 1,097 shares authonzed, 22 and 27 shares

issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Mote 14) — -

Additional paid-in capital 18,285 18,875
Accumulated income 3,131 7974
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net:
Investment securities, available-for-sale 31 55
Cefined benefit pension and other postretiremant plans (B4) (509
Derivative instruments classified as cash flow hedges a8 3
Foreign currency translation adjustments (2) (1)
Total accumuilated other comprehensive (boss) iIncome, net (17) 21
Total equity 27,413 26,870
Total liabilities and equity 5 3g568 5 35,956

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of thase consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating Revenues
Service revenues
Data processing revenues
Imternational transaction revenues
Other revenues
Client incentives

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel
Marketing
Metwork and processing
Prafessional fees
Depreciation and amortization
General and adminestrative
Litigation provision (Note 20)

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Man-operating income
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision {MNote 18)
Met income including nen-controfling interest
Loss attributabie to non-controlling interest
Met income attributable to Visa Inc.

VISA ING.

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

For the Years Ended

Soplermnber 30,

2014

13 Mz

{In millions, except par share data)

5797 § 5352 § 4872
5,167 4642 3,975
3,560 3,389 3,025
770 716 704
(2,592) (2,321) (2,155)
12,702 11,778 10,421
1,875 1,932 1,726
900 876 873
507 458 414
328 412 385
435 397 333
507 451 451
453 3 4,100
5,005 4,539 8,282
7,697 7,238 2139
27 18 68
7,724 7,257 2,207
2,286 2 277 85
5,438 4,980 2142
— e 2
5438 S 4980 § 2144

Sea accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS—({Continued)

For the Years Ended
Saptember 30,

2014 23 2mMz2
{in milllons, excepl per <hare data)

Basic earnings per share (Note 15)

Class A common stock 5 865 = 61 & 317
Class B common stock 5 363 = 320 5 1.40
Class C common stock $ 866 &£ 761 & 37
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding (Mote 15) B =SS
Class A common stock 498 520 524
Class B cornman stock 245 245 245
Class C commuon stock 26 28 41
Diluted eamings per share (Note 15)
Class A common Stock 5 862 3 7.59. & 316
Class B common stock $ 362 319 3 1.38
Class C common stock s 862 = .59 & 316
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding (Mote 15)
Class A cormmon slock 631 656 678
Class B common stock 245 245 245
Class C common stock 26 28 41

See accompanying notes, which ane an infegral pant of these consclidated financial statements
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended

Saptember 30,
2014 2013 20z
(in mildons)
Met income including non-controlling interest $ 5438 3 480 & 2142
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Investment securities, available-for-sale:
Met unrealized (loss) gain (44) g 4
Income tax effect 7 (33) (1)
Reclassification adjustment for net (gain) loss realized in net income including
non-controlling interest (1) 1 —_
Income tax effect —_ — —
Defined benefit pension and ather postretirement plans;
Met unrealized actuanal (loss) gain and prior senvice credit (27) 187 (23)
Income tax effect g8 {70y L
Amartization of actuanal (gain) loss and pnor senvice credit realized in net Income
including non-contralling interest (8) 16 23
Income tax effect 3 {7} =)
Derivative instruments classified as cash flow hedges:
Met unrealized gain 65 39 3
Income tax effect (13) (&) (1)
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized in net income including nan-
controlling interest (486) (29) {14}
Income tax effect g L] T
Foreign currency transiation adjustments {1} — 7
Cther comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (38) 192 5
Camprehensive income including non-contralling interest 5,400 5172 2,147
Comprehensive [0ss attributabie to non-controlling interest -_ — 2
Comprehensive income attributable to Visa Inc. $ 5400 3 5172 5 2149

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of thess consolidated financial statements.
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Accumulated

Common Stock Additianal Other Hon-
Palddn  Accumulsled Comprehensive Conirolling Tatal
Class A Class B Class C  Capital Income Income (Loss) Interest Equity
{irs rillions, except por share data)

Balance as of September 30, 2011 520 245 47 $19907 S 6706 § {176). & — 526437
Net income atiributable to Visa Inc. 2144 Z144
Loss abiibutabée to non-controfing interest (2) )
Cither comprehensive income, net of tax 5 5
Comprehensive income including non-controlling
interest 2,147
Issuance of resticled stock awards 1 o
Conversion of class C common stock upon sale into
public market 16 {16} —
Share-based compensation {Mote 16) 147 147
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation 71 71
Cash proceeds from exercise of slock cplions 4 174 174
Restricted stock and performance-based shares
seltled in cash for taxes " — (40) (40
Cash dividends declared and paid, al a guarberly
amaunt of $0 22 par as-converted share (S85) [255)
Repurchase of class A commen stock (5) (264) (4485) (710}
Furchase of non-controling interest (3) 2 (1)
Balance as of September 30, 2012 535 245 31 519992 & 7809 5 e ) —  27.630

L I & B & & N 1

" Decrease in class A common steck is less then 1 million shares

Sea geeampanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY—{Continued)

Accumulated
Comman Stock Additional Other Non-
Paldin  Accumulated Comprehensive Controlling Total
Class A Class B Class ©  Capital Incame Income (Loss) Interast Equity
{In milllons, except per share data)
Balance as of Soptember 30, 2012 535 245 31 $19992 § 7809 § (171 § — S$276%0
Net income atiributable to Visa Inc 4980 4580
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 192 192
Comprehensive income including non-controlling
interast 5172
Issusnce of restricied slock swards 1 —
Conversion of class C common stock upon sale into
public market 4 (4) —
Share-based compensation (Note 16) 179 173
Excess tax beneft fof share-basad &ongensation 74 T4
Cash procesds from exercise of stock epliens 1 108 108
Restricted stock and performance-based shares
settied in cash fof taxes " — {54) (54)
Cash diidends declared and paid. 81 a quarterly
mount of $0.33 per as-converied share (B54) (BE4)
Repurchase of class A common stock (Notle 14) (33) (1,414) (3.951) [5,365)
Balance as of Septembaer 30, 2013 508 245 27 3BAT5 & 7074 5 5 — §25870

Y Decrease i class A common stock |s less then 1 million shares

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of thess consolidated financial statements
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY—{Continued)

Aecurmulaled
Commaon Stock Additignai Other Hon-
Palddn  Accumulated Comprehensive Controlling Total
Cliss A Class B Class ©  Capltal Income Incoma [Loss) Indarast Equity
{in milllomns, except per share data)
Balance as of Saplember 30, 2013 508 245 27 SiBETS 5. TOT4 S5 21 & — 326,870
Meet income atinbutable to Visa Inc. 5 438 5 438
Ofher comprehensive loss, net of tax (38) (38)
Comprehendive income inciuding nan-contralling
Interest 5.400
Issuance of restricted shock awards 1 S
Conversion of cass © commen stock upon sale info
public mane! 5 (5) —
Share-based compensaltion (Note 16) 172 172
Excess tax benefit Tor share-based compensation o0 90
Cash procesds from sxercise of stock options 1 81 &1
Resiricted stock and perfomance-based shares
settled in cash for taxes * — (86) (88)
Cash dvidends declared and paid, 8t & quartedy
amount of 50.40 per as-converted share (Nobe 14} (1,008) (1.006)
Repurchase of class A common stock (MNote 14) (200 (B43) {3.275) (4,118)
Balance as of Seplember 30, 2014 495 245 22 SB299 5 913 8 (17} & — 827.Mm3

" Decrease in class A commen slock is less than 1 million shares,

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6o

177/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Table of Contents

VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended

Septembaer 30,
2014 2013 2012
{in millions)
Operating Activities
Met income including non-controlling interest $ 5438 5 4580 S5 2142
Adjustments to recancile net income including non-controlling interest to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization of chent incentives 2,592 2,321 2155
Share-based compensation 172 179 147
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation {20} (74 {71y
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment, technology and intangible assets 435 a7 333
Deferred income taxes (580) 1,527 (1,650
Litigation provision (Mote 20) 453 3 4101
Other 3y S0 (8)
Change in operating assels and habilties:
Income tax recevable 51 ar [&7)
Settlement receivable 13 [345) (42)
Accounts receivable (53) (38) (161)
Client incentives (2,395) (2,338) (1,757)
Other assets (420) [o43) 41
Accounts payable {s8) 40 (17
Setflernent payable 107 506 270
Accrued and other liabilities B13 T02 (227
Accrued litigation (Mote 20) 98 {4,384) {1409
Met cash provided by operating achivities 7.208 3022 5,009
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, equiprment, technology and intangible assets (553) [471) (3786)
Proceeds from disposal of property, equipment and technology —_ _— 2
Investment securities, available-for-gale;
Purchases (2,572) (3164 (4,140
Proceeds from maturities and sales 2,342 2,440 2,093
Acquisitions, net of cash received (149) — (3)
Purchiases of / contributions to other investments (2) (3) (12)
Proceeds f distributions from other investments — 34 2
Met cash used in investing activities (941) (1,164) (2414)

Ses accompanying notes, which ane an infegral part of thess consolidated financial statements
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VISA ING.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—{Continued)

For the Years Ended

Seplember 30,
2014 2013 2012
{in milllens)
Financing Activities
Repurchase of class A commaon stock (Mote 14) (4,118) {5,363) (7100
Dividends paid (MNote 14) (1,008) (B64) (595)
Deposits into litigation escrow account—retrospective respansibility plan (MNote 3) (450) — (1,715)
(Return to) payments from litigation escrow accourt—retrospective responsibility plan (Mote 3) (998) 4383 140
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock options : i 108 174
Restncted stock and performance-based shares settled in cash for taxes (88) (&) —
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation a0 74 il
Payments for earn-out related to PlaySpan acquisition — (12) (14)
Frircipal payments on capital lease obligations — {B) 16}
Net cash used in finaneing activities (6A78)  (1748)  (2.655)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {1) - 7
({Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {215) 112 (53
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2188 2074 2127
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 19T & 21868 & 2074
Supplemental Disclosure
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 26858 5 585 3§ 2057
Mon-cash accruals related to purchases of property, equipment, technalegy and intangible
assetls ] 62 3= 46 5 &7

See accompanying notes, which are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

Mote 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Crganization . In a senes of transactions from Cctober 1 to October 3, 2007, Visa Inc. ("Visa" or the "Company") undertook a
rearganization inwhich Visa LS A Inc. ("Visa ULS A", Visa International Service Association (“visa International”), Visa Canada
Corporation ("Visa Canada") and Inovant LLC ("Inovant) became direct or indirect subsidianies of Visa and established the
refrospective responsibility plan {the "Cctober 2007 reorganization” or "recrganization”). See Note 3—Refrospective Responsibility
Flan . The recrganization was reflected as a single transaction on October 1, 2007 using the purchase method of accounting with
Visa UL.S.A. as the accounting acquirer. Visa Europe Limited ("Visa Europe™) did not become a subsidiary of Visa Inc., but rather
remained cowned and governed by its Eurcpean member finamcial instituions. See Note 2—\Visa Ewrape .

Visa is a global payments technology company that connects consumers, businesses, financial institutions and governments
in mare than 200 countries and territories to fast, secure and refiable electronic payments. Visa and its wholly-owned consalidated
subsidianes, including Visa LS A Visa International, Visa Warldwide Pte, Limited ("WWPL"), Visa Canada, Inovant and
CyberSource Corparation ("CyberSource”), operate one of the world's most advanced processing networks — Visaiet — which
facilitates authorzation, clearing and settlernant of payment transactions worldwide, VisaMet also offers fraud protection for account
holders and assured payment for merchants, Visa is not a bank and does not issue cards, extend credit or sel rates and fees for
account helders on Visa-branded cards and payment products. In most cases, account holder and merchant relaticnships belong
to, and are managed by, Visa's financial institution chents. Visa provides a wide varnety of payment solutions that support payment
praducts that issuers can offer to their account holders: pay now with debit, pay ahead with prepaid or pay tater with credit products.
These services facilitate transactions on Visa's network among account holders, merchants, financial institutions and governments
in mature and emerging markets globally

Consolidalion and basis of presentation . The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Visa and its
consolidated entities and are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Amernca ("U.S. GAAP™). The Company consolidates its majority-owned and controlied entities, including vanable interest entities
("VIEs") for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. The Compary's investments in VIEs have not been material to its
consolidated financial statements as of and for the penods presented Al significant imtercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consalidation

Beginning in fiscal 2013, current income tax receivable is presented separately on the consolidated balance sheets.
Previgusly, it had been included in the prepaid expenses and other current assets line. The Comparny also combined the interest
income (expense), imestment income and other lines on the consalidated statements of aperations into one line entitled, “Nen-
operating income.” All prior period information has been reclassified to conform to current pericd presentation

The Company's activities are interrelated, and each activity is dependent upon and supportive of the other. All significant
operating decisions are based on analysis of Visa as a single global business. Accordingly, the Company has one repartable
segment, Payment Services.

Use of estimales | The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management o
make estmates and assumphions about future events. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
labilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the repaering peried. Future actual results could differ matenally from these estimates.
The use of estimates in specific accaunting policies is described further below as appropriate.

Cash and cash equivatents . Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash and certain highly ligquid investments with original
maturities of 20 days or less from the date of purchase. Cash equivalents are primarily recorded at cost, which approximates fair
value due to their generally short maturities:

Restricted cash—liigation escrow . The Company maintains an escrow accaunt from which monetary liabilities from
settiements of, or judgments in, the covered litigation are paid. See Nolte 3—Relrospactive Responsibility Flan and Note 20—Lagal
Matters for a discussion of the covered litigation, The escrow funds are held in money market investments, tegether with the
interest earned, less applicable taxes payable, and classified as restricted cash on

B3
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)
September 30, 2014

the consolidated balance sheets Interest earned on escrow funds is included in non-operating income on the consolidated
staterments of operations.

Irvestments and fair value. The Company measures cenain assets and liabilities at fair value, Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value measuraments are reported under a three-level valuation hierarchy. See Nole 4—Fair Value
Measuremants and Irvestments . The classification of the Company's financial assets and liabilities within the hierarchy is as
follows

Leval 1 —Inputs to the valuation methodalogy are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
The Company's Level 1 assets include money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and LS. Treasury securties.

Level 2 —Inputs to the valuation methodalogy can include: (1) quated prices in active markets for similar (not identical) assets
or liabiliies; (2) quoted prices for idenhcal or similar assets in norn-active markets, (3) inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, or (4) inputs that are denved principally from or corroborated by observable market data, The
Company's Level 2 assets and liabilities include commercial paper, U.S. government-sponsored debt securities, corporate debt
securties and fareign exchange derivative instruments.

Leaval 3 —Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and cannot be commoborated by observable market data. The
Company's Level 3 assets and liabilities include auction rate securities and the Visa Europe put option.

Trading investment securities include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employee compensation and
benefit plans. Trading activity in these investments is at the direction of the Company's employees, These investments are heldina
trust and are not available for the Company’s aparational or liquidity needs. Interest and dividend incorme and changes in fair value
are reconded in non-operating income, and offset in personnel expense on the consolidated statements of operations.

Available-for-sale investmert securnties include investments in debt and equity securnties, These securities are recarded at
cost at the time of purchase and are carried at fair value. The Company considers these securities to be available-for-sale to meet
working capital and hquidity needs. Investments with original maturities of greater than 50 days and stated matunbes of less than
one year from the balance sheet date, or irvestments that the Compary intends to sell within one year, are classified as curmrent
assels, while all other securities are classified as non-current assats. The majanty of these investments are classified as non-
current as they have stated maturities of more than one year from the balance sheet date. However, these investments are
generally available to meet short-term liquidity needs. Unrealized gains and losses are raported in accumulated other
comprehensive income or loss on the consolidated balance sheets until realized, The specific ientification method s used to
calculate realized gain or loss on the sale of marketable securities, which is recorded in non-operating income on the consalidated
statements of operations. Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned and are included in non-operating income an
the consclidated statements of operations,

The Company evaluates its debt and equity securities for other-than-temporary impairment, or OTTI, on an ongoing basis.
When there has been a decline in fair value of a debt or equity secunty below the amortized cost basis, the Company recognizes
OTTIif: (1) it has the intent to sell the security, (2) it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before recovery
of the amortized cost basis; or (3] it does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the securnily. The Company has
not presented required separate disclosures because its gross unrealized loss positions in debt or equity securities for the periads
presented are not matenal,

The Company applies the equity method of accounting for investrents in other entities when it holds beteeen 20% and 50%
ownership in the entity or when it exercises significant influence. Under the eguity method, the Compamy’s share of each entity's
profit or loss is reflected in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of operations. The equity method of accounting is
also used for flow-through entities sech as limited partnerships and limited liability companies when the investment ownership
percentage is equal to or greater than 5% of outstanding ownership interests, regardless of whether the Company has significant
influence over the investees.

54

181/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Table of Contents
VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)
September 30, 2014

The Cormpany applies the cost method of accounting for investments in other entities when it holds less than 20% ownership
in the entity and does not exercise significant influence, or for fiow-through entities when the investment ownership is less than 5%
and the Company does not exercise significant inlluence. These investments consist of equity holdings in non-public companies
and are recarded in other assets an the censalidated balance sheels,

The Company regularly reviews investments accounted for under the cost and equity mathods for possible impairment, which
generally invehves an analysis of the facts and changes in circumstances influencing the investment, expectations of the entity's
cash flows and capital needs, and the viability of its business model

Financial instrumants . The Company considers the following to be financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash-litigation escrow, frading and availatie-for-sale investment secwities, settlement receivable and payable, customer collateral,
non-marketable equity investments, setllement risk guarantee, denvative instruments, and the Visa Europe put option. See Nole
4—Fair Value Measwements and Investmenis

Saffiement recefvabie and payable . The Company operates systems for authorizing, clearing and setthng payment
transactions worldwice, U5, doliar settiements with the Comparny's linancial institution clients are typically settled within the same
day and do not result in a receivable or payable balance, while settlerment currencies other than the U.S. dollar generally remain
outstanding for one (o two business days, resulting in amourts due from and to clients. These amounts are presented as settiement
receivable and seftlemert payable on the consolidated balance sheets,

Customer coliateral | The Company holds cash deposits and other non-cash assets from certain cients in order to ensune their
performance of settlement obligations arising from Visa-branded cards and payment products processed in accordance with the
Company's operating regulations. The cash collateral assets are restncted and fully offset by comesponding liabilities and both
balances are presented on the consolidated balance sheets. Mon-cash collateral agsets are held on behalf of the Compamy by a
third party and are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. See Nofe 11—Saltlermant Guarantee Management .

Chent incenfives. The Company enters into long-term contracts with financial instiution clients and other business partners for
various programs designed to build payments valume, increase Visa-branded card and product acceptance and win mearchant
rauting transactions over Visa's network. Thess incentives are primarily accourted for as reductions fo operating revenues or as
operating expenses if a separate wWentifiable benefit at fair value can be established. The Company generally capitalizes advance
incentive payments under these agreements if select criteria are met. The capitalization criteria include the existence of fuure
ecanamic benafits to Visa, the existence of legally enforceable recoverability language (e.g . early termination clauses),
managerment's abality and intent to enfarce the recoverability language and the atulity to generate future earmings from the
agreament in excess of amaunts deferred Capitalized amounts are amorntized over the shorter of the penod of contractual
recoverability or the cormesponding peried of economic benefit. Incentives not yet paid are accrued systematically and rationally
hased on managemant's estimate of each client's perfarmance. These accruals are regularly reviewed and estimates af
performance are adjusted, as appropriate, based on changes in performance expectations, actual client performance, amendments
to existing contracts or the execution of new contracts. See Note 1 7—Commitments and Confingencias |

Property, equipment and fechnology, net . Property, equipment and technology ane recorded at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization, which are computed on a straight-line basis over the asset’s estimated useful life.
Depreciation and ameortization of technology, furmiture, fixtures and equipment are computed over estimated useful Ives ranging
from 2 to 7 years, Capital leases are amortized over the lease term and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset or lease term. Building improvements are depreciated between 3 and 40 years, and buildings are
depreciated over 40 years. Improvements that increase funchionality of the asset are capitalized and depreciated over the asset's
rermaining useful ife. Land and construction-in-pragress are not depreciated. Fully depreciated assets are refained in property,
equipment and technology, net, until removed from senvice.

Technology includes purchased and internally developed software, including technology assets obtained through acquisitions.
internally developed software represents software primarily used by the Visahlet electronic payments network and CyberSource
platform, Internal and external costs incurred during the preliminary project
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stage are expensed as incurred. Qualifying costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized. Once the
project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use these costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
technology's estimated useful life. Acquired technology assets are iniially recorded at fair value and amorized on a straighi-line
basis over the estmated ussful life

The Company evaluates the recaverability of long-lived assets far impairment annually or mare frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carnying amount of an asset or asset group may nat be recoverable, If the sum of expected
undizcounted net future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of an asset or asset group, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent that the carmying amount of the asset or asset group exceeds its fair value. See Nofe 8—Fropenty, Equipment and
Technoiogy, Net

Leases . The Company enters into operating and capital leases for the use of premises, software and egquipment. Rent
expense related to cperating lease agreements, which may or may not contain lease incentives, is primarily recorded on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Intangibie assats. mat . The Compary records identifiable intangible assets at fair value on the date of acquesition and
evaluates the useful life of each asset.

Finite-lived intangible assets primarily consist of customer relationships, reacguired rights, reseller relaticnships and
tradenames obtained through acquisitions. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on & straight-line basis and are tested for
recoverability if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. These intangibles
have useful lives ranging from 3 to 15 years. Mo events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of
September 30, 2014 . See Nole 7—Intangible Asssls and Goodwill

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of radename, customer relationships and the Visa Europe franchise right acguired in
the October 2007 recrganization. Intangible assets with indefinite useful Ives are not amortized but are evaluated for impairment
annually or more frequertly If events or changes in circumstances indcate that impairment may exist. The Company first assesses
gqualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative impairment test for indefinte-lived intangible
assets. The Company assesses each category of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an aggregate basis, which
may requine the allecation of cash flows andior an estimate of fair value lo the assets or asset group. Impairment exists if the fair
value of the indefinite-lived intangitie asset is less than the carrying value. The Company relies on a number of factors when
completing impairment assessments, including a review of discounted net future cash fMlows, business plans and the use of present
value technigues,

The Company completed its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as of February 1, 2014 | and
concluded there was no impairment as of that date. Mo recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment of the
Company's indefinite-lived intangible assets existed as of September 30, 2014 .

Goodwill . Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in a business
combination. Goodwill is not amartized but is evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit level annually as of Febreany 1, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may exist.

The Company evaluated its goodwill for impairment an February 1, 2014, and concluded there was no impairment as of that
date. Mo recent events or changes in circumsiances indicate that impairment existed as of September 30, 2014 .

Accrued htigation . The Comparny evaluates the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome in legal or regulatory proceedings to
which it is a party and records a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. These judgments are subjective, based on the status of such legal or reguiatory proceedings, the
mernts of the Company's defenses and consultation with corporate and external legal counsel, Actual cutcomes of these legal and
requiatory proceedings may differ materially from the Company's estimates. The Company expenses legal costs as incurred in
professional fees in the consolidated statements of operations. See Nole 20—Lagal Matters .
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Revenue recogrition . The Company's operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues, data processing
revenues, international transaction revenues and other revenues, reduced by costs incurred under client incentives amangements.
The Company recognizes revenue, net of sales and other similar taxes, when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, the senice is perfarmed and collectability of the resulting recenable is reasonably assured

Service revenues consist of revenues earnad for providing financial institution clients with support services far the delivery of
Visa-branded payment products and solutions. Current quarer service revenues ane primarily assessed using a calculation of
current pricing applied fo the prior quarter's payments volume. The Company also eams revenues from assessments designed to
support ongoing acceptance and volumea growth initiatives, which are recognized in the same period the related volume is
transacted.

Data processing revenues consist of revenues earmed for authorization, clearing, settlement, network access and other
maintenance and support services that facilitate transaction and information processing amaong the Company's clients globally and
with Visa Europe. Data processing revenues are also eamed for transactions processed by CyberSource’s online payment gateway
plafform. Data processing revenues are recognized in the same penicd the related transactions occur or services are rendened

International ransaction revenues are earmed for cross-barder transaction processing and currency conversion activities
Cross-border transactions arise when the country of arigin of the isswer is different from that of the merchant. Internaticnal
transaction revenues are primarily generated by cross-border payments and cash volume.

Cther revenues consist mainly of license fees for use of the Visa brand, revenues earned from Visa Europe in connection with
the Visa Europe Framework Agreement (see Nole 2—Visa Eurape ), fees from account holder services, licensing and cerification
and cther activities related to the Company's acquired entities. Other revenues also include optional service or product
enhancements, such as extended account holder protection and concierge services. Other revenues are recognized in the same
pericd the related transactions ocour o senvices are rendered,

Marketing, The Compary expenses costs for the production of advertising as incurred, The cost of media advertising 15
expensed when the advertising takes place. Sponsorship costs are recagnized over the period in which the Compary benefits from
the sponsorship rights. Promotional items are expensed as incurmed, when the related services are received, or when the related
event oocurs

Income taxes . The Compary's income tax expense consists of two components: current and deferred. Current income tax
expense represents taxes paid or payable for the current period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are necognized to reflect the
future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the respective
tax basis of existing assets and liabilities, and operating loss and credit carmyforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
medasured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temparary differences ane
expected to be recovered or settled. In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable, management considers whether it is
maore likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. A valuation allowance is recorded for the
portions that are not expected to be realized based on the level of historical taxable income, projections of future taxable income
over the periods in which the temporary differences are deductible, and qualifying tax planning strategies.

Where interpretation of the tax law may be uncertain, the Comparny recognizes, measures and disclozses income tax
uncertainties. The Company accounts for interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in non-goperating income
in the corsaolidated statements of aperations. The Comparty files a consolidated federal income tax return and, in cerain states,
combined state tax returns. The Company elects to ciaim foreign tax credits in any given year if such election is beneficial to the
Company. See Nofe 18—Income Taxes .

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans . The Company's defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit
plans are actuanally evaluated, incorporating various critical assumplions including the discount rate and the expected rate of
return on plan assets (for qualfied pension plans). The discount rate is based on a "bond duration matching” methodology, which
reflects the matching of projected plan obligation cash flows to an average of high-quality corporate bond yield curves whose
duration matches the projected cash flows
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The expected rate of returm on pension plan assets considers the current and expected asset allocabon, as well as historical and
expected relurns on each plan asset class. Any difference between actual and expected plan experience, incleding asset retum
experience, in excess of a 10% comdar is recegnized in net periodic pension cost over the expected average empioyees fulure
service peniod, which is appraximately 8 vears for plans in the United States, Other assumptions imvalve demagraphic factars such
as retirement age, morality, attrition and the rate of compensation increases. The Company evaluates assumplions annually and
medifies them as appropriate,

The Company recognizes the funded status of its benefit plans in its consolidated balance sheets as other assets, accrued
lrabilities and other liabilities. The Company recognizes settlement losses when it seftles pension benefit obligations, including
making lump-sum cash payments to plan participants in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits, when
certain thresholds are met. See Naote T0—Pension, Postratirement and Other Benafils .

Faresgn currency remeaswremant and transiation . The Comparny's functional cumency is the LS. dollar for the majonty of its
fereign operations. Transaclions denominated in curmencies other than the applicable functional currency are comverted to the
furictional currency at the exchange rate on the transaction date, At period end, monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured to
the functional curmency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are
remeasured at historical exchange rates. Resulting foreign currency transaction gains and losses related to conversion and
remeasurement are recorded in general and administrative expeansa in the consolidated staterments of aperations and were not
material for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012,

For certain foreign operations, the Company's functional currency may be the local currency in which a foreign subsidiary
executes its business transactions. Translation from the local currency to the LS. dollar is performed for balance sheet accounts
using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using an average exchange rate
for the period. Resulting translation adjustments are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss
on the consolidated balance sheets

Devnivalive financial insfruments . The Company uses foreign exchange forward derivative contracts to reduce its exposure (o
fereign currency rate changes on ferecasted non-functienal currency denominated operabonal cash fliows. Denvatives are carmed at
fair value on a gross basis in either prepaid and other current assets or accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. At
September 30, 2014, dervatives outstanding mature within 12 months or less. Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair
value of demvative instruments are accounted for either in accumulated other comprehensive income or lass on the consolidated
halance sheets, of in the consolidated statements of operations (in the correspanding account where revenue or expense is
hedged, or to genaral and administrative for hedge amounts determined to be ineffective) depending on whether they ars
designated and qualify for hedge accounting. Fair value represents the difference in the value of the derivative instrumerts at the
contractual rate and the value at current market rates, and generally reflects the estimated amounts that the Company would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date based on broker quotes for the same or similar instruments. The
Company does not enfer inte denvative contracts for spaculative or trading purposes. See Nole 12—Danvalive Financial
Instrumerts |

Guarantess and indemnications | The Company recognizes an obligation at inception for guarantees and indemnifications
that qualfy for recognition, regardiess of the probability of occurrence. The Company indemnifies its financial institution clients for
sattiement losses sufferad due to the failure of ary other client to fund its setlemernt obiligations in accardance with Visa's oparating
reguiations. The estimated fair value of the liability for settement indemnification is included in accrued liabilities on the
cansalidated balance sheets and is described in Note 11—Sethament Guaranfes Managament . The Company indemnifies Visa
Eurcpe for claims ansing from the Company's or Visa Eurcpe's activities that are brought outside of Visa Europe's region, as
described in Nofe 2—Visa Eurape .

Share-based compansation . The Company recognizes share-based compensation cost using the fair value method of
accounting. The Company recognizes compensation cost for awards with only service conditions on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service penod, which is generally the vesting period. Compensation cost for perfformance and market-condition-based
awards is recognized on a graded-vesting basis. The amount is intally
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estimated based on target performance and ks adjusted as appropriate based on management's best estimate throughout the
performance period. See Note 16—Share-based Compensalion |

Eamings per share . The Compary calculates earnings per share using the two-class method to reflect the different rights of
each class and series of outstanding common stock. The dilutive effect of incremental common stock equivalents |s reflected in
diluted earmings per share by application of the treasury stock method, See Naote 15—Eamings Per Share

Recently Issued Accounting Fronouncements

In Jarsary 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ('FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU™) 201301,
which clarfies the scope of ASU 2011-11. As amendead, ASU 2011-11 requires disclosure of the effect or potential effect of
offsetting arrangements on a Company’s inmancial pesition as well as enhanced disclosure of the rghts of offset associated with a
Company's recognized derivative instruments, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse
repufchase agreements, and secunties borrewing and lending transactions. The amended standard impacts presentation anly. The
Company adopted the standard effective October 1, 2013, The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial staternents.

In February 2013, the FASE issued ASLI 2013-02, which established the effective date for the requirement to report the effect
of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income. The
standard impacts presentation only and does not impact the underlying components of other comprehensive iIncome or net Income.
The Company adopted the standard effective Cctober 1, 2013,

Beginning with fizcal 2014, the components related to pension and postretirement benefit plans are presented on
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. All prior period infarmation has been reclassified to conform
to current period presentation. The adoption did not have a material impast on the consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2013, the FASE issued ASL 2013-04, which provides guidance for the recegnition, measurement and disclosure
of ohligations resulting from joirt and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation is fived at the
reparting date. The Comparry will adapt the standard effective October 1, 2014, The adoption is not expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-05, which clarfies the applicable guidance for the release of the cumulative
translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in & foreign entity, or no longer holds
a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business within a foreign entity. The
Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2014 The adoption 12 not expected to have a material impact on the:
consalidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASE issued ASU 2013-11, which provides guidance for the financial statement presentation of an
unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforwand, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward exists. The Compary
will adopt the standard effective Cctober 1, 2014, The adoption is not expecled ta have a material impact on the consolidated
finrancial statemenrts.

In May 2014, the FASE igsued ASU No. 2014-08, which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it
expects to be entitied for the transfer of goods or senvices to customers. The ASU will replace existing revenue recognition
guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. The Company will adopt the standard effective October 1, 2017, Early
application is not permilted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The
Company i evaluating the effect that ASL 2014-0% will have on its consdlidated financial statements and related disclosures. The
Company has not yet selected a transition method and is evaluating the full effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

In June 2014, the FASE issued ASL Mo 2014-12, which requires a performance target in stock compensation awards that
affects vesting, and is achievable after the requisite service period, be treated as a performance condition. The Company will adopt
the standard effective October 1, 2016 The adoplion is not expected to have a material impact to the consolidated financial
statements
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Mote 2—Visa Europe

As part of Visa's October 2007 recrganization, \Visa Europe exchanged its ownership interest in Visa International and Inovant
for Wisa commeon stock , a put-call option agreement and a Framework Agreement, as described below

Visa Europe put option agreement. The Company granted Visa Europe a perpetual put option, which if exercised, will require
Viza to purchase all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Visa Europe from its members. The Company is required to
purchase the shares of Visa Europe no later than 283 days after exercise of the put option. The put option agreement provides a
formuila for determining the purchase price of the Visa Europe shares, which, subject to certain adjustments, applies Visa Inc's
forward price-to-eamings multiple, or the P/E ratio (as defined in the option agreement), at the time the option is exercised to Visa
Europe's adjusted sustainable income for the forward 12-month period (as defined in the option agreement), or the adjusted
sustainable income. The calculation of Visa Europe’s adjusted sustainable income under the terms of the put option agreement
includes potentially material adjustments for cost synergies and other negotiated items. Upon exercise, the key inputs to this
formula, including Visa Europe's adjusted sustainable income, will be the result of negotiation between the Company and Visa
Europe. The put option agreement provides an arbitration mechanism in the event that the two parties are unable to agree on the
ultimate purchase price

The fair value of the put option represents the value of Visa Europe's oplion, which, under certain conditions, could obligate
the Company to purchase its member equity interest for an amount above fair value, The fair value of the put eption does not
represent the actual purchase price that the Company may be required to pay if the opltion is exercised. Given current economic
canditions, the purchase pnce under the terms of the put option would likely be in excess of $10 billion . While the put option isin
fact non-transferable, its fair value represents the Company’s estimate of the amount the Comparny would be required to pay a
third-party market participant to transfer the potential obligation in an orderly fransaction.

The fair value of the put option is computed by comparing the estimated sirike price, under the terms of the put option
agreement, to the estimated fair value of Visa Ewrope. The fair value of Visa Europe is defined as the eslimated amount a third-
party market participant might pay in an arm's-length transaction under normal business condtions. A probability of exercise
assumption is applied to reflect the possibility that Visa Europe will never exercise its option.

The estimated fair value of the put option represents a Level 3 accounting estimate due to a lack of trading in active markets
and a lack of obsenvable inputs in measuring fair value, See Nole 4—Fair Value Measurements and Investments . The valuation of
the put option therefore requires substantial judgment. The most subjective of estimates applied in valuing the put option are the
assumed prabability that Visa Europe will elect to exercise its aption and the estimated differential betweean the FIE ratio and the
PIE ratio applicable to Visa Eurepe on a standalone basis at the time of exercize, which the Company refers to as the “F/E
differertial

Exercize of the put option is at the sole discretion of Visa Eurcpe (on behalf of the Viza Europe shareholders pursuant to
authonty granted to Visa Europe, under its Articles of Association). The Company estimates the assumed probability of exercise
based on reasonably available information including, but not limited to: (i) Visa Europe's stated intentions; (il) indications that Visa
Europe is preparing to exercise as reflected in its reported financial results; (i) evaluation of market conditions, including the
reguiatony environment, that could impact the patential future profitability of Visa Europe; and (iv) qualitative factors applicable to
Viza Europe's largest members, which could indicate a change in their need or desire to liquidate their investment holdings. Factors
impacting the assumed FE differential used in the calculation include material changes in the P/E ratio of Visa and those of a group
of comparable companies used to estimate the forward price-to-earmings multiple applicable to Visa Europe

The Company determined the fair value of the put option to be approximately $145 million at September 30, 2014 and 2013
In determining the fair value of the put option on these dates, the Company assumed a 40% probability of exercise by Visa Europe
at some point in the future and an estimated long-term P/E differential at the time of exercise of 1.9 x. Changes in the fair value of
the put option are recorded as non-cash, non-operating income in the Company's consolidated statements of oparations.
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The put option is exercisable at any time at the sole discretion of Visa Europe. As such, the put option lability is included in
accrued liabilities on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2014 . Classification in current liabilities is not an
indication of management's expectation of exercise and simply reflects the fact that the aldigation resulting from the exercise of the
instrurment could become payable within 12 months.

Visa call option agreemeant Visa Europe granted to Visa a perpetual call option under which the Comparny may be enfitied to
purchase all of the share capital of Visa Europe. The Company may exercise the call option in the event of certain triggering events
These triggenng events invohe the performance of Visa Europe measured as an unremediated decline in the number of merchants
or ATM's in the Visa Europe region that accepts Visa-branded products. The Company believes the likelinood of these events
ooourming is remaote.

The Framework Agreemant. The relationship between Visa and Visa Europe is governed by a Framewoark Agreement, which
provides for trademark and technology icenses and bilateral services as described below.

The Company granted to Visa Europe exclusive, imavocable and perpetual licenses to use the Visa trademarks and
technology intellectual propety owned by the Company and cerain affilates within the Visa Europe region for use in the field of
financial services, payments, related information technology and information processing services and participation in the Visa
systemn. Visa Europe may sublicense the Visa trademarks and technology inteflectual property to its members and other
sublicensees under agreed-upon circumstances.

The hase fea for these irevocable and perpetual icenses is recorded in other revenues and was approximatehly 5143 million
per year for fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 . This fee is eligible for adjustment annually based on the annual growth of the gross
domestic product of the Ewropean Union, although the adjustment can never reduce the annual fee below 3143 million , The
Company determined through an analysis of the fee rates implied by the economics of the agreement that the base fee, as
adjusted in future penicds based on the growth of the gross domestic product of the Eurcpean Union, approximates fair value.

In addition to the licenses, Visa provides Visa Europe with authorization, clearing and settlement services for cross-border
transactions involving Visa Europe’s region and the rest of the world. Visa Eurcpe must comply with certain agreed-upaon global
rules gavermning the interoperability of Visa's systems with the systems of Visa Eurape as well as the use and interoperability of the
Visa trademarks. The parties will also guaraniee the obligations of their respective clients and members to settle transactions,
manage certain relationships with sponsors, clients and merchants, and comply with rules relating to the operation of the Visa
enterprise, Under the Framewark Agreement, the Company indemnifies Visa Europe for claims ansing fram the Company's or Visa
Eurepe's activities that are brought outsade of \Visa Europe's region, and Visa Europe likewise indemnifies the Company for such
claims brought within Visa Eurepe's region. However, Visa Europe has exprassed an initial” view that it is not obligated to
indemnify the Company for any claim relating to the Eurcpean Competition Proceedings, including claims asseried in boeth the
European Commission matter and the UK. Merchant Litigation. The Company continues to firmly believe that Visa Europe is
obligated to indemnify the Company for all such claims, See Nole 20—Legal Maliers

The Company has not recorded liabilities associated with these obligations as the fair value of such cbligations was
determined to be insignificant at September 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, The Compary has determined that the value of
services exchanged as a result of these various agreements approximates fair value at September 30, 2014 and 2013 |

respectively.
Note 3—Retrospective Responsibility Plan

The Company has established several related mechanisms designed o address potential liatdlity under cerain litigation
referred to as the “covered litigation " These mechanisms are included in and referred to as the retrospective responsibility plan, or
the plan, and consist of a litigation escrow agreement, the conversion feature of the Compamy’s shares of class B common stock,

the indemnification cbligations of the Visa U.S.A, members, an interchange judgment sharing agreement, a loss sharing
agreement, and an omnibus agreemant, as amended.

Covered tigation consists of.
« the Discover Litigation . Discover Financial Services Inc. v, Visa US. A Inc, Case No. 04-CV-0TE44 (S. DY) (settled);
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+ the Amenican Express Litigation . American Express Travel Related Services Co,, Inc. v, Visa US A Inc. et al, No. D4-
CV-0897 (S.D.N.Y.), which the Company refers to as the American Express litigation {settied),

«  he Aftndge Liigation | Attnidge v, Visa US A Inc. et al, Case Mo, CGC-04-436820 (Cal. Super.);

+ e inferchange Mullidistnct Litigation . In re Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchart Discount Antitrust Litigaton,
1:05-md-01720-J5-J0 (E.D.NY.) or MDL 1720, including all cases currently included in MOL 1720, any other case that
includes claims for damages relating to the period prior to the Company's IPO that has been or is transferred for
coordinated or consolidated pre-trial procesdings at any time to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on Muidistrict
Litigation or otherwise included at any time in MOL 1720 by order of any court of competent jurisdiction and Kendall v.
Visa US A Inc_etal, Case No. CC4-4275 JSW (M.O. Cal); and

= any claim that challenges the rearganization or the consummation thereof; provided that such claim is transferred for
coordinated or consalidated pre-trial proceedings at any time to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Fanel on Multidistrict
Litigation or otherwise included at any time in MOL 1720 by order of any court of competent jurisdiction

Liigakon escrow agreament. In accordance with the litigation escrow agreement, the Company maintains an escrow ascount,
from which manetary liabilities from settlernents of, or judgments in, the covered litigation are paid. The amount of the escrow is
determined by the board of directors and the Company’s litigation committee, all members of which are affiliated with, or act for,
certain Visa U.S A members. The escrow funds are held in money market imvestments along with the interest earned, less
applicable taxes, and are classified as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets.

The fallowing table sats forth the changes in the iigation escrow account.

oOoOooodn

Fiscal 2014 Flscal 2013
{in millions)

Balance at October 1 % 49 5 4,432
Retumn of takedown payments from settlerment fund into the litigation escrow accourt 1,056 =
Deposits into the litigation escrow account 450 -
Payments to opt-out merchants {57) —
Payments to class plaintiff settiement fund ™ — (4,033)
Payments to individual plaintiff settiement fund ™ — 1350)

Balance at September 30 ] 1,498 § 49

" These payments are associaled with the interchange multidistrict litigation. The seftlement with the class plairtiffs in these
proceedings is subject to the adjudication of appeals, See Note 20—Legal Maltars |

An accrual for the covered likgation and a change to the litigation provision are recorded when loss is deemed to be probable
and reasonably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information, including but not fimited to
recommendations made by the litigation committee. The accrual related to the covered litigation could be either higher or lower than
the litigation escrow account balance. The Company recorded an additional 450 million accrual for the coverad litigation during
fiscal 2014 See Nole 20—Legal Matters .

Caonversion feafure. Under the ferms of the plan, when the Company funds the litigation escrow account, the shares of class B
commaon stock are subject to dilution through an adjustment to the conversion rate of the shares of class B common stock to shares
of class A commeon steck This has the same economic effect on earmings per share as repurchasing the Comparmy's class A
common stock, because it reduces the class B conversion rate and consequertly the as-corverted class A comman stock share
count. See Note 14—Stockholders' Eguity .

Indemnification obfigations . To the extent that amounts available under the litigation escrow arrangement and other
agreements in the plan are insufficient 1o fully resolve the covered litigation, the Company will use commercially reasonable efforts
to erforce the indemnification obligations of Visa U S A's members for such
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excess amount, including but not limited o enforcing indemnification obligations pursuant to Visa U.S A's certificate of
incorporation and bylaws and in accondance with their membership agreements.

Interchange judgrment sharing agreament, Visa U5 A and Visa International have entered into an interchange judgment
sharing agreement with certain Visa U5 A members that have been named as defendants in the interchange multidistrict litigation,
which is described in Note 20—Legal Mafters | Under this judgment shanng agreement, Visa LS A members that are signatories
will pay their membership proportion of the amount of a final judgment not allocated to the conduct of MasterCard,

Loss shanng agreement. Visa has entered into a loss shanng agreement with Visa .S A Visa International and certain Visa
LS. A members. The loss sharing agreement provides for the indemnification of Visa U5 A Visa International and, in certain
circumstances, Visa with respect to: (i) the amount of a final judgment paid by Visa LS A or Visa International in the covered
Iitigation after the operation of the interchange judgment sharing agreement, plus any amounts reimbursable to the interchange
judgment sharing agreement signatories, or (i) the damages portion of a settlement of a covered litigation that is approved as
requered under Visa U.S A's certificate of incorporation by the vote of Visa U.S A's specified voting members, The several
obligation of each bank that 15 a party 1o the |oss sharing agreement will equal the amount of amy final judgment enforcealle
against Visa U5 A | Visa Internalional or any other signatory to the interchange judgment sharing agreement, or the amouwnt of any
approved settlement of a covered iitigation, multiplied by such bank's then-current membership propoertion as caloulated in
accordance with Visa UL.S A's certificate of incorparation

Cmribus agreamant. Visa entered into an omnibus agreement with MasterCard and certain Visa U.S A members that
confirmed and memarialized the signatories’ infentions with respect to the loss sharing agreement, the interchange judgment
sharing agreement and other agreements relating to the interchange multidistrict litigation, see Note 20— egal Maftars . Uinder the
omnibus agreement, the manetary portion of any settlerment of the interchange multidistrict litigation covered by the omnibus
agreement would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 33 3333% and a Visa portion at §5.65867% . In addition, the monetary
portion of any judgment assigned to Visa-related claims in accordance with the omnibus agreement would be treated as a Visa
portion. Visa would have mo liability for the monetany portion of any judgment assigned to MasterCard-retated claims in accordance
with the omnibus agreement, and if a judgment is not assigned to Visa-related claims or MasterCard-related claims in accordance
with the omnibus agreement, then any monetary lability would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 32.3333% and a Visa portion
at 66.6667% . The Visa portion of a setlement or judgment covered by the omnibus agreement would be allocated in accordance
with specified provisions of the Company's retrospective responsibility plan. The litigation provision on the consclidated statements
of operations is not impacted by the execution of the omnibus agreement.

Cn August 26, 2014, Visa entered into an amendment to the amnibus agreement. The omnibus amendment makes applicable
to cartaln setlements in opt-out cases in the interchange multidistrict litigation the settlement-sharing provisions of the omnibus
agreement, pursuant to which the monetary portion of any settiermant of the interchange multidistrict litigation covered by the
omnibus agreement would be dvided into a MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and a Visa portion at 66.66673% , The ommbus
amendment also provides that in the event of termination of the class Settlement Agreement, Visa and MasterCard would make
mutuslly acceptable arrangements so that Viza shall have received two-thirds and MasterCard shall have received one-third of the
total of (i) the sums paid to defendants as a result of the termination of the Settlement Agreement and (i) the takedown payments
previously made to defendants,
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Note 4—Fair Value Measurements and Investments
Fair Value Measurements

The Compary measures certain assels and liabiities at fair value. See Nate 1—Summary of Significant Accourting Policies

Assels and Liabilifies Measured al Fair Value on a Recurning Basis
Fair Valus Measuraments af Saptember 30
Using Inputs Considered as
Lovel 1 Lawel 2 Lewval 3
2rd 23 2014 2013 2014 2013
(I millicns)

Assets
Cash eqguivalents and restricted cash:

Money market funds $§ 22 & 1,071

Commercial paper - 37 3 a1
Investment securities, trading:

Equity securnties 69 (]
Investment securities, available-for-sale:

U.5. government-sponsored debt securities 2182 2704

LS Treasury securties 2178 1,673

Equity securities 58 101

Corporate debt securities 522 269

Auction rate securities 5 T & 7
Prepaid and other current assets:

Foreign exchange derivative instruments 40 23
Total $ 4580 3 20820 § 2,781 § 3047 § T 3 7

wrdirye b e ot i b b o b 8 8 it b il s ettt W bl . b .
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities:

Visa Eurape put option 5 145 % 145

Foreign exchange derivative irstruments 5 8 3 15
Total $ -_ 5 - § 8 3 15 § 145 & 145

L e ——

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assets during fizcal 2014 .

Leval 1 asseis measured &t fair value on a recuming basis. Money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and U5,
Treasury secunties are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, as far value is based on quoted prices in active
markets The increase in the Company's Level 1 assets pnmarnly reflects the recaipt of takedown payments related to the
interchange multidistrict litigation, which were deposited into the Company's Itigation escrow account. See Nafe J—Relrospective
Responsibility Plan and Nole 20—Legal Mallers

Leval 2 assats and liabilifies measured at fair valug on a recurning basis. The fair value of LS. government-sponsored debt
securities and corporate debt securities, as provided by third-party pricing vendors, is based on quated prices in active markets for
similar, not identical, assets. The pricing data obtained from outside sources is reviewed internally for reascnableness, compared
against benchmark quotes from inde pendent pricing sources, then confirmed or revised accordingly. Commercial paper and foreign
exchange dervative instruments are valued using inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or
carroborated by observable market data. There were no substantive changes to the valuation techniques and related inputs used to
measure fair value during fiscal 2014

Leval 3 assels and liabilifes measured at fair value on a recurning basis. Auction rate securities are classified as Level 3 due
to a lack of trading in active markets and a lack of cbservable inputs in measuring fair value. There
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were no substantive changes to the valuation techniques and related inputs used to measure fair value during fiscal 2014,

Visa Europe piit aption agreement. The Company has grarted Visa Europe a perpetual put eption which is carmed at fair value
in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheats. The fair value of the put option was 5145 million at September 30, 2014
and 2013 | Changes in fair value are recorded as non-cash, non-operating income in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations. See Nobe 2—\Visa Eurape . The liakility is classified within Level 3 as the assumed probability that Visa Europe will elect
to exercise its option and the estimated FVE differential are amaong several unobsenvable inputs used to value the put option.

Assels Meoasured at Fair Value on a Non-recurmng Basis

Non-markeiable equily investments and investiments accounted for under the equity method . These investments are
classified as Level 3 due to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherent lack of liquidity, and the fact that inputs used to
measure fair value ane uncbservable and require management's judgment, When cerain events or circumstances indicate that
impairment may exist, the Company révalues the investments using vanous assumptions, including the financial metrics and ratios
of comparable public companies, The Company recognized a 515 million ather-thantemporary impairment loss related to these
investments during fiscal 2013, There were no significant impairment charges incurred dunng fiscal 2014 and 2012 . At
Septernber 30, 2014 and 2013 | these investments totaled $35 mallion and $30 million | respectively, These assats are classified in
other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. See Nole 5—Prapaid Expensas and Other Assels

Due to a change in the Company's relationship with one of its iInvestees during fiscal 2013, the Company reclassified equity
securities previously accounted for as an equity method investment, with a carrying value of 512 million , to long-term availabla-for-
sale investment securities. The fair value of this investment at Seplember 30, 2014 and 2013 was 353 million and 322 million |
respectively

Nov-financial sssets and fabiities. Long-lived assets such as goadwill, indefinte-lved intangible assets, finte-lived intangible
assets, and property, equipment and technology are considered non-financial assets. The Compary does net have any non-
financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recuming basis, Finite-lived intangible assets primarily consist of custamer
relationships, tradenames, and reseller relationships, all of which were abtained through acquisitions, Sea Note T—Intangible
Assets and Goodwill .

If the Company were required to perform a quaniitative assessment for impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets, the fair values would generally be estimated using an income approach. As the assumptions empioyed to
measure these assets on a non-recurring basis are based on management's judgment using internal and external data, these fair
value determinations are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The Company completed its annual impairment review of
its indefinite-lived intangible aszets and goodwill as of February 1, 2014 | and concluded that there was no impairment. Mo recent
events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed at September 30, 2014 . See Nole 1—Summary of Significard
Accounting Folicies

Oither Finaneial Instrumants not Measured at Fair Value

The following financial instruments are not measured at fair value on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2014 , but require disclosure of their fair values: time deposits recorded in prepaid expenses and other current
assels, settlement receivable and payable, and customer coliateral. The estimated fair value of such instruments at September 30,

2014 , approximates their carrying value due to their generally short maturities. If measured at fair value in the financial statements,
these financial instruments would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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Investments
Trading Investment Securnlies

Trading imvestment securities include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employee compensation and
benefit plans. Trading activity in these investments is at the direction of the Company's employees. These investments are held in
triest and are not available for the Compamy's operational or liquidity needs. Interest and dividend income and changes in fair value
are recorded in non-operating income, and offset in personnel expense on the consolidated statements of operations. As of
September 30, 2014 and 2013 | trading investment secunties totaled 569 million and 575 million | respectively.

Available-for-sale Investment Secuwnifies
The amorized cost, unrealized gains and losses and fair value of available-for-sale irvestment securities are as follows

Septamber 30, 2013

September 30, 2014
Amorized —oros RN e Amortized ——ostUnredized Ly,
Cost Galns Lossas Walua Cost Galng Lossas Walua
[in miillons)
U8 government-sponsored debt
securifies & 2180 % R — 5 2162 & 27 § 3 58 — 5% 2704
LS. Treasury securities 2174 2 — 2176 1,671 2 — 1673
Equity securities 15 43 — 58 14 88 (1) 101
Carporate debt securities 521 1 — 522 269 — — 269
Auction rate securities T o —_ T [ - —_— 7
Total 5 4877 5 48 3 — & 4925 % 4682 3 93 & (1 & 4754
Less: current portion of available-
for-sale investment securities {1,910) (1,994)
Long-term available-for-zale
investment securities 3 3013 5 2760

The available-for-sale imvestment securities primarily inciude LLS. government-sponsored debt secunties, LLS. Treasury
secunbes and corporate detd secunties, Available-for-sale debt secunties are presented Delow In accordance with their stated
maturities. The majonty of these investments, 53.0 billion | are classified as non-current, as they have stated maturities of more
than one year from the balance sheet date. However, these investments are generally available to meet short-term ligquidity needs

Amortized Cost Fair Valus
{in millions)

September 30, 2014:

Due within one year s 1,903 = 1,906
Due after 1 year through' S years 2,952 2955
Due after 5 years through 10 years — —
Due after 10 years 7 7
Total $ 4,862 3§ 4,867
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Investment Income

Irvestmert income is recorded as non-operating income in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and
consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended
September 30,
2014 2013 3
{in milllions)

Interest and dividend income on cash and investments 5 2% 5 27 & 17
Gain on other ifvestments 8 ] 81 A
Investment securities, trading:

Unrealzed (losses) gains, net (2) 4 9

Realized gains (losses), net ] 2 (1)
Investment securities, availabla-for-sale

Realized gains (losses), net 1 (1) —_
Other-than-temporary impairment on investments (=} (15) (&)
Investment income § w5 2. 8 i
Note 5—Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following;

Seplember 30, Seplember 30,
2014 2013
(I mdlllons}

Prepaid expenses and maintenance s 102 5 11
Foreign exchange derivative instruments—({See Nole 12—Dervalive Financial
Instruments) 40 3
Cther 73 53
Total 5 216 3 187

Other non-current assets consisted of the following:

Saptember 30, September 30,
2014 2013
fim millions)

Mon-current income tax receivable— [ See Nole 18—Income Taxes) " 3 BarT & 253
Pension assets— ( See Nole 10—Pension, Postrelirement and Other Baneafits) 184 192
Other investments— ( See Nole $—Fair Value Measuraments and Investments) 35 an
Long-term prepaid expenses and other 51 45
MNen-current deferred tax assets— [ See Note 19—Income Taxes) 8 —_
Tatal 5 855 & 521

" The increase in non-curment income tax receivable is mainty due to a tax benefit related to the deduction for LS. domestic
production activities taken during fiscal 2014

(&)
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Mote 6—Property, Equipment and Technology, Net

Properly, equipment and technology, net, consisted of the following:

Septembaer 30, Septembaer 30,
2014 2013
(i millions)

Land 5 ™ 35 1
Buildings and building improvemerts 78T 766
Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements 1,187 8583
Construction-in-progress 76 74
Technology 1,784 1,545
Total property, equipment and technology 3,915 3,439

Accumudated depreciation and amartization (2,023) (1,707)
Fraperty, equipment and technology, net 5 1,882 = 1,732

Technology consists of both purchased and internally developed software. Internally developed software primarily represents
software utilized by the VisaNet electronic payments network and CyberSource platform. At September 30, 2014 and 2013 |
accumulated amortization for technology was 51,129 million and 3858 million , respectively

At Septernber 30, 2014 | estimated future amortization expense on technology was as follows:

2018 and
Eiscal 2015 2016 2017 i 1:4 tharealter Trtal

{in millions)
Estimated fulure amortization expense -] 198 § 183 % 138 3 80 S 95 5 655

Depreciation and amaortization expense related to propery, equipment and technology was S389 miflion , 3328 mallion and
5265 million for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 | respectively. Included in those amounts was amortization expense on technology of
2198 million , 5173 million and 3132 millien for fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 | respectively.

Note T—Intangible Assets and Goodwill

At Septermnber 30, 2014 and 2013 |, the Company's indefinite-lived intangible assets consisted of customer relationships of
%6.8 billion , Visa tradename of $2.6 bilion and a Visa Europe franchize right of $1.5 billion , all of which were acquired as part of
the Company's October 2007 reorganization. Customer relationships represent the value of relationships with clients outside of the
Linted States, excluding the Ewropean Unian. Trademames represent the value of the Visa brand outside of the United States,
excluding the European Union, Visa Europe's franchise right represents the value of the right to franchise the use of the Visa brand,
use of Visa technology and access to the overall Visa network in the European Unian
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Indefinite-lnvied and finite-lived intangible assets consisted of the following:
Septembaer 30, 2014 September 30, 2013
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Het Gross Amortization Hat
{in millions)

Finite-lived intangible assets:

Customer relationships & 339 5 (162) S 17T 8 339 8§ (125) % 214

Tradenames 192 (54) 138 192 41) 151

Reseller relationships 95 (48] 47 95 {36) 99

Other 52 (12) 40 = (2) a4
Total finite-lived intangible assets § EB78 % (276) % 402 &% G&TB % (210 5 458
Irdefinite-lived intangible assets 11,008 10,883
Total intangible assets, net 3 11,411 3 11,95

Amortization expense related to finite-lved intangible assets was S66 million | $89 million and $68 million for fiscal 2014 |
2013 and 2012 | respectively. At September 30, 2014, estimated future amarntization expense on finte-lived intangible assets is as
folbaws

2019 and
Eiscal 2015 20ME 2047 2018 thereafter Total
{im milllons)
Estimated future amortization expense s 62 & 48 5 47 5 41 5 23 & 402

There was no impairment related to the Company's indefinite-lived or finite-lived intangible assets dunng fiscal 2014, 2013 or
2012

In April 2014, the Company acquired a business in which it previously held a minonty inferest. Total purchase consideration
was approdimately 5170 million , paid primarily with cash on hand. Total purchase consideration has been allocated to the tangible
and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date. Related
indefinite-lved intangible assets recarded totaled 5126 million . Goodwill of $60 million was recorded to reflect the excess purchase
consideration over net assets assumed,

In August 2014, the Company entered into a license agreement with one of its strategic partners. The transaction was
accounted for as a business combination. Total consideration under the license agreement was approximately $15 million | of which
£12 millian was recorded as goodwill,

Note 8—Accrued and Other Liabilities
Acorued labiities consisted of the following

Sapternber M), September 30,
14 2013
{in millions)
Accrued operating expenses 5 198 3 182
Viza Europe put oplion—(See Note 2—Wisa Europe ) ' 145 145
Deferred revenue 82 B0
Accrued marketing and product expenses 11 27
Accrued income taxes—(See Nole 18—income Taxes ) 73 G4
Other 114 135
Total 5 624 35 613
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Cther non-current habilities consisted of the following:
Sepltember 30, Seplembar 30,

014 2013

[In millions)
Accrued income taxes—(See Nole 19—Income Taxes ) ™ 5 BS5S & 453
Employes benefits ez 85
Cther BB 63
Total L] 1,008 5 502

The put option is exercisable at any time at the sole discretion of Visa Europe with payment required 285 days thereafter,
Classification in current liabilities is net an indication of management's expectation of exercise and simply reflects the fact that
the obligation resulting from the exercize of the instrument could become payable within 12 months. The fair value of the put
aption does not represent the actual purchase price that the Company may be required to pay if the option is exercised, which
would likely be in excess of 310 billion

The increase in non-current accrued income taxes is primarily related to an increase in liabilifies for uncertain tax positions.

MNote 8—Debt

Commarcial paper program. Visa maintains a commercial paper program to support its working capital reguirements and far
other general corporate purposes. Under the program, the Compary is authorized to issue up to $3.0 billion in outstanding motes,
with maturities up to 397 days from the date of issuance, The Company had no outstanding ebligations under the prograrm at
September 30, 2014 |

Credit faciiity. On January 28, 2014 | the Company entered into an unsecured $3.0 billion revolving credit facility (the "Credit
Facifity'). The Credit Facility, which expires on January 28, 2015 | repiaced the Company's previous $3.0 billion credit facility, which
terminated on January 29, 2014 . The Credit Facility contains covenants and events of default customary for facilities of this type.
This facility is maintained to provide liquidity in the event of settlernent failures by the Company's clients, to back up the commerzial
paper program and for general corporate purnposes. The participating lenders in the Credit Facility include certain holders of the
Company's class B and class C commaon stock, certain of the Company's clients, and their affiliates,

Interest on borrowings under the Credit Facility would be charged at the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") or an
alternative base rate, in each case plus applicable margins that fluctuate based on the applicable credit rating of the Company's
senior unsecured long-term debt Visa also agreed to pay a commitment fee, which will fluctisate based on the credit rating of the
Company's senior unsecured long-term debt. Currently, the applicable margin is 0.00% to 0.75% depending on the type of the loan,
and the commitment fee is 3.07% . There were no borrowings under either facility and the Company was in compliance with all
related covenants during the year ended and as of September 30, 2014 .

Note 10—Pension, Postretirement and Other Benefits

The Company sponsors vanous qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans that
pravide for retirement and medical benefits for substantially all employees residing in the United States. The Company also
sponsors other pension benefit plans that provide benefits for internationally- based employees at certain non-U.S. locations, which
are not presented below as they are not material. The Company uses a Septemnber 30 measuremeant date for its pension and other
postretirement benefit plans.

Defined benafit pension plans. The benefits under the current defined benefit pension plan are eamed based on a cash balance
formula. An empleyee's cash balance account is credited with an amount equal to 6% of eligible compensation plus interest based
on 30-year Treasury securities. The funding policy is to contribute annually no less than the minimum required contribution under
ERISA

FPosiratirement benafits plan. The postretirement benefits plan provides medical benefits for retirees and dependents who meet
minimum age and service requirements. Benefits are provided from retirement date until age
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65, Retfirees must contribute on a monthly basis for the same coverage that is generally available to active employees and their
dependents. The Company's condributions are funded on a current basis.
Summary of Flan Aclivities
Change in Benefit Obligation:

Cither

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

September 30, September 30,
2014 L] 2014 2013
{in millions)
Benefit obligation—beginning of fiscal year $ @897 £ 900 § 2% 3 32
Sarvice cost 48 43 == .
Interest cost 42 a5 1 1
Actuanal loss (gain) B4 (127} {2) (3]
Benefit payments (83) () (4) = ()
Flan amendment 5 {3) & —_ 5 - & —_
Benefit obligation—end of fiscal year $§ 983 £ 897 § 20 5 5
Accumulated benefit obligation s armr = 852 MA A
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets—beginning of fizcal year 5 1085 3 973 § - 3 —
Actual return on plan assets 135 125 — —
Company contribution 10 — 4 4
Benefit payments (83) {44 (4) ()
Fair value of plan assets—end of fiscal year £ 1117 = 1055 § —_ & —_—
Funded status at end of fizcal year $ 134 S 158 § (20) 3 (25)
Recegnized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Mon-current asset $ 184 = 192 % — 3 —
Current liability {7 (8) {3) ()
Mon-current liability (23) (25) {17) (21)
Funded status at end of fiscal year 5 124 = 158 % {20) = (25)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income before tax:
Othar
Penslon Benefits Posiretireament Bensfils
September 30, September 30,
ard 2013 2014 M3
(I milllons)

Met actuarnal loss (gain) ] 121 5 108 % {7} 5 (5)
Pricr service credit (18) {23) (&) {11}
Total § 106 3 B % (15) & {17)
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Amounts from accumulated other comprehensive income to be amortized into net periedic benefit cost in fiscal
2015 :

Other
Pastrotiremaent
Pension Benafits Benefits
{in millions)
Actuarial loss (gain) & = - (Z)
Pricr service credit (7h (3)
Total 5 g & {5)
Benefit obligations in excess of plan assets related to the Company’s non-qualified plan:
Penslon Benefits
September 30,
g 2013
{in millians]
Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
Accumulated benefit obligation—end of year 5 (30) & (33)
Fair value of plan assete—end of year 3 - 3 —
Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
Benefit obligation—end of year $ (30) % (34)
Fair value of plan assets—end of year 5 -_ & —
Met periodic pension and other postretirement plan cost:
Olher
Pansion Banafits Postretirement Benefils
Fizcal
014 HA13 iz 2014 M3 12
fim millliens)
Service cost $§ 48 5 43 38 § — 5 — & —
Interest cost 42 35 40 1 1 1
Expected return on assets (68) {81) (55) — — —
Amartization of:
Prior service credit (8) () () (2 (3) (3)
Actuanial loss (gain) 1 28 33 (1) (1) ==
Met banefit cost $ 13 % 3B 347 5 (3 3 3 8 @
Curtaiiment gain (3) — —_ -_ —_ —
Settlement loss 3 — 3 —_ —_ _
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 12 5 ¥ 350 % (I 5 (3 5 @
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income:

Cther
Pension Banafils Pastretiroment Benafilts
4 013 2014 2013
fin milllians)
Current year actuarial loss (gain) 5 18 § (191) § 2) 3 (4)
Amarization of actuanal (loss) gain (4) (28) 1 1
Current year prior senvice credit (3) - - —_
Amarization of prior service credit 11 9 3 3
Total recognized in other comprehensive INcome 3 22 5 (210) § 25 —
Total recogrized in net penodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income 5 3 5 (174) § {1) = (3
Weighted Average Actuarial Assumptions:
Fiscal
2014 2013 2012
Discount rate for benefit obligation: ™
Pension 4.2T% 4.81% 3.85%
Postretirement 2.88% 2.768% 221%
Discount rate for net periodic benefit cost:
Persion 4.81% 3.85% 470%
Paostretirement 2.76% 221% 3.39%
Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets © T.00% T.00% 7.50%
Rate of increase in compensation levels for,
Benefit obligation 4,00% 4.50% 4.50%
Met periodic benefit cost 4.50% 4 50% 4.50%

" Based on 2 "bond duration matching” methodalogy, which reflects the matching of projected plan liability cash flows to an
average of high-guality corporate bond yield curves whose duration matshes the projected cash flows

“ Primarily based on the targeted allocation, and evaluated for reasonableness by considering such factors as: (i) actual return on
plan assets; (i) historical rates of return on various asset classes in the portfelio; (i) projections of retuns on various asset
classes, and (iv) current and prospective capital market conditions and economic forecasts.

The assumed annual rate of future increases in health benefits for the other postretirement benefits plan is 8% for fiscal 2015
The rate is assumed to decrease to 5% by 2020 and remain at that level thereafter. These trend rates reflect management's
expectations of lure rates. Increasing or decreasing the healthcare cost trend By 1% would change the postretirement plan benefit
obligation by less than 51 million

Pension Flan Assats

Pension plan assets are managed with a long-term perspective to ensure that there is an adequate level of assets to support
benefit payments to participants over the life of the pension plan. Pension plan assets are managed by external investment
managers. Investment manager performance is measured against benchmarks for each asset class on a quarterly basis. An
independent consultant assists management with investment manager selections and performance evaluations.

Pension plan assets are broadly diversified to maintain a prudent level of nsk and to provide adequate liquidity for benefit
payments. The Company generally evaluates and rebalances the pension plan assets, as appropriate, to
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ensure that allecations are consistant with target allocation ranges. The current target allocation for pension plan assets s as
follows: equity securities of 50% to B0% | fixed income securities of 25% to 35% and other, pimanly consisting of cash equivalents
to meet near term expected benefit payments and expenses, of up to 73 . At Seplember 30, 2014 | pension plan asset allocations
for the above categories were G9% | 29% and 2% | respectively, which were within target allocation ranges

The following fable sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan's investments at fair value as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013 | including the impact of unsettled transactions:

Falr Value Measurements at Seplember 30,

Lawel 1 Lavil 2 Laviel 3 Tatal
2014 2013 2014 2013 214 2013 2014 213
{im milllons)

Cash equivalents $§ 22 5 26 s 2 5 26
Corporate debd securities 144 5 108 144 106
Debt securities of LS, Treasury and federal
agencies 159 145 159 149
Asset-backed sacurities $ 26 5 23 25 23
Equity securities 76T 791 T&T a1
Tatal $788 377/ S 33 5255 % 26 £ 23 § 1,017 § 1085

Level 1 assets. Cash equivalents (money market funds) and equity secunties are classified as Level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy, as fair value is based on quoted prices in active markels.

Leval 2 assets. The fair values of government-sponsored and corporate debt secunties are based on quoted prices in aclive
markets for similar assets as provided by third-party pricing vendors. This pricing data is reviewed internally for reasonableness
thraugh comparisons with benchmark quotes from independert third-party sources. Based on this review, the valuation is confirmed
or revised accordingly

Leval 3 assets. Asset-backed securities are bonds that are backed by various types of assets and primarily consist of
morgage-backed securities. Asset-backed securities are clazsified as Level 3 due to a lack of cbeervable inputs in measuring fair
value

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Leve| 2 assets duning fiscal 2014 or 2013 | A separate roll-forward of Level 3
plan assets measured at fair value is not presented because actvities during fiscal 2014 and 2013 were immaterial,
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Cash Flows
Qthar
Pansion Pastratirement
Banefits Benafits
Actual employer contributions {in millllons)
2014 E o 35 4
2013 5 - 5 4
Expected employer contributions
2015 5 7T & 3
Expected benefit payments
2015 $ 123 8 3
2016 5 124 & 3
2017 8 115 % 3
2018 5 108 3 3
2019 5 103 5 3
2020-2024 5 437 5 B
Other Benafits

The Company sponsers a defined contribution plan, or 401(k) plan, that covers substantially all of its employees residing in
the United States. Personnel costs inciuded 546 million | 544 million and $37 million in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 | respectively,
for expenses attributable to the Company's employees under the 401 (k} plan. The Company's confributions to this 401(k) plan are
funded cn a current basis, and the related expenses are recognized in the peried that the payroll expenses are incumed,

Note 11—Settlement Guarantee Management

The Company indemnifies its financial institution clients for settlement losses suffered due to failure of any other client to furd
its settlement obligations in accordance with Visa's operating regulations. This indemnification creates setflerment sk for the
Company due to the difference in timing between the date of a payment transaction and the date of subsequent settlement
Sefttlernent at risk, or exposure, is estimated based on the sum of the following inputs: (1) average daily velumes diring the quarter
multiplied by the estimated number of days to settle plus a safety margin; (2) four months of rolling average chargebacks volume;
and (3} the total balance for outstanding Visa Travelers Cheques.

The Company maintains and regularly reviews global settlerment risk policies and procedures to manage settlement exposure,
which may require clients to post collateral if certain credit standards are not met

The Company's settlement exposure is limited to the amount of unsettled Visa payment transactions at amy point in time. The
Company's estimated maximum seftlement exposure increased to approximately 356 9 billion at September 30, 2014 | compared to
%53 8 billion at September 30, 2013 | as a result of continued growth in the Company's business. Of these amounts, $3.2 billion and
$3.0 billion at September 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, were coverad by collateral. The total available coliateral balances
presented below were greater than the sattiement exposure covered by customer coliateral held due to instances in which the
available collateral exceeded the total setttement exposure for certain financial institutions at each date presented
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The Company maintained collateral as follows:
Saplemnber 30, September 30,

2014 2013
{in mitlions)
Cash equivalents 5 961 3 BEE
Fledged secunties at market value 148 256
Letters of credit 1,242 1,191
Guaraniees 1,554 1,411
Total ] 3,805 5 3,729

Cash equivalents collateral s reflected in customer collateral on the consolidated balance sheets as it 15 held in eserow in the
Company's name. All other collateral 1s excluded from the consolidated balance sheets. Pledged secunties are held by third parties
in trust for the Company and clients, Letters of credit are provided primarily by client financial instifutions to serve as irevocable
guarantess of payment. Guarantees are provided pnmarily by parent financial institubions to secure the obligations of their
subsidianes, The Company rautinely evaluates the financial viability of institutions praviding the guarantees,

The fair value of the settlerment risk guarantee is estimated using a proprietary model which considers statistically derived loss
factors based on historical experience, estimated seftiement exposures at penod end and a standardized grading process for
clients {u=ing, wherne available, third-party estimates of the probability of customer failure). Historically, the Company experienced
minimum losses, which has contributed to an estimated probability-weighted value of the guarantee of approximately 52 mullion and
31 million at September 30, 2014 and 2013 | respectively. These amounts were reflected in accrued liabilities on the consolidated
halance sheets.

Note 12—Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company maintains a rolling cash flow hedge program with the objective of reducing exchange rate risk from forecasted
net exposures of revenues derived from and payments made in non-funclional currencies during the following twelve months. The
angregate notional amounts of the Company's derivative contracts outstanding in itz hedge program were $1.2 billion and $1.1
billion at September 30, 2014 and 2013 | respectively. As of September 20, 2014 | the Company™s cash flow hedges in an asset
position totaled 538 million and were classified in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the consclidated balance sheet,
while cash flow hedges in a liability pesition totaled 35 million and were classified in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet. These amounts are subject fo master netting agreements, which provide the Company with a legal right to net settle multiple
payable and recevable pestions with the same counterparty, in a single currency through a single payment. However, the
Company presents fair values on a gross basis on the corsolidated balance sheets | See Nobe 1—Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

To qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment, the Company formally documents, at inceplion of the hedge, all
relationships between the hedging transacthons and the hedged items, as well as the Company’s risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Comparny also formally assesses whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged items and whether those derivatives
may be expected to remain highty effective in future penods.

The Company uses regression analysis to assess effectiveness prospectively and retrospectively. The effectiveness tests are
performed on the foreign exchange forward contracts based on changes in the spot rate of the dervative instrument compared to
changes in the spot rate of the forecasted hedged transaction. Forward points are excluded for effectiveness testing and
measurement purposes. The excluded forward points are reported in eamings. For fiscal 2014 |, 2013 and 2012 |, the amounts by
which earnings were reduced relating to excluded forward points were 527 million | 314 million and 516 million | respectively.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dervative contracts is recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprenensive income ar loss on the consolidated balance sheets. When the forecasted
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transaction occurs and is recognized in earmings, the amount in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss related ta that
hedge is reclassified to operating revenue or expense. The Company expects to reclassify 541 million pre-tax, to eamings during
fiscal 2015.

The Company’s derivative financial instruments are subject to both credit and market risk. The Company monitors the credit-
worthiness of the financial institutions that are counterparties to its derivative financial instruments and does not consider the risks
of counterparty nonperformance to be significant. The Company mitigates this risk by entering into master netting agreements
which require each parly to post collateral against its net lizbility position with the respective counterparty. As of September 30,
2014 | the Company has received collateral of 323 million from counterparties, which is included in accrued liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet. Motwithstanding the Company's efforts to manage foreign exchange risk, there can be no absolute
assurance that its hedging activities will adequately protect against the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Credit
and market risks related to derivative instruments were not considered significant at September 30, 2014 .

Additional disclosures that demanstrate bow derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s finansial

position, financial performance and cash flows have not been presented because the impact of derivative instruments i immaterial
to the overall consolidated financial statements

Note 12—Enterprise-wide Disclosures and Concentration of Business

The Company's long-lived net property, equipment and technology assets are classified by major gecgraphic areas as
feliows

Seplemer 30, September 30,
2014 2013
{bn milllons)
United States 5 1,788 = 1,621
Internatianal a4 111
Tatal 3 1832 = 1,732

Revenue by geographic market is primarily based on the location of the issuing financal institubion. Revenues earmed in the
United States were approximately 54% of total operating revenues in fiscal 2094 and 2013 | and 55% in fiscal 2012 . No individual
country, other than the United States, generated more than 10% of total operating revenues in these years.

A significant portion of Visa's operating revenues is concentrated among its largest clients. Loss of business from any of these

clients could have an adverse effect on the Company. The Company did not have any custormer that generated greater than 10% of
its net operating revenues in fiscal 2014, 2013 or 2012

Note 14—Stockholders” Equity

The number of shares of each class and the number of shares of class A common stock on an as-corverted basis at
September 30, 2014 | are as follows:

Conversion Rate Inte As-converied Class A

Shares Class A Cormman
{im milllons, except conversion rate) Culistanding Comman Stock Stock
Class A common stock 485 —_ 485
Class B common stock 245 04121 1m
Class C common stock 22 1.0000 =
Tuta| 618

"' Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. As-comverted class A common stock is caloulated based on
unrounded numbers.
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Reduchon in as-convertad shares. Dunng fiscal 2014 | total as-corverted class A common stock was reduced by 22 million
shares, at an average price of $209.15 per share, using $4.6 billion of operating cash an hand. Of the $4.6 billion , 54 1 billion was
used to repurchase class A common stock in the open market. In addition, the Company deposited 5450 millien of operating cash
into the litigation escrow account previously established under the retrospactive responsibility plan. The deposit has the same
economic effect on earnings per share as repurchasing the Company's class A comman stock, because it reduces the class B
carversion rate and consequently the as-corverted class A common stock share count. See Note 3—Refrospective Responsibiity
Flan

The following table presants share repurchases in the open market during the following fiscal years:

2014 2013

20 33
5 20850 % 161.94
5 4118 5 5.365

{in millions, excepl per share data)
Shares repurchased in the open market
Average repurchase price per share ™
Total cost

" all shares repurchased in the open market have been retired and constitute authorized but unissued shares.
“ Figures in table may not recalculate due to rounding, Average repurchase price per share is calculated based on unrounded
MATIEES.
The stock repurchases and litigation escrow deposit discussed above reduced the funds from the 5.0 billion sharea
repurchase program authorized by the Comparny's board of directors in October 2013 . As of September 30, 2014, the program

had remaining authorized funds of 5682 million . All share repurchase programs authorized prior to October 2012 have been
completed. In October 2014 | the Company's board of directors authorized an additional $5.0 billion share repurchase program.

Under the terms of the retrospective respansibility plan, when the Company makes a depasit into the littgation escrow account,
the shares of class B camman stock are subject to dilutien through an adiustment to the corversion rate of the shares of class B
common stock to shares of class A common stock

The following table presents as-converted class B common stock after deposits into the litigation escrow account in fiscal
2014 | There were no deposits into the litigation escrow account in fiscal 2013

Fiscal 2014
{in millions, exeepl par share and conversion rale data) Saptember 2014
Deposits under the retrospective responsibility plan 3 450
Effective price per shara " b 21533
Reduction in equivalent number of shares of class A commaon stock 2
Corversion rate of class B commaon stock to class A common stock after deposits 04121
101

As-convered class B common stock after deposits

" Effective price per share calculated using the volume-weighted average price of the Company’s class A common stock over a
pricing period in accordance with the Company's current certificate of incorporation.

Ciass B common stock. The class B commeon stock is not comvertible or transferable until the date on which all of the coverad
litigation has been finally resolved. This transfer restriction is subgect (o limited exceptions, including transfers to other holders of
class B common stock. After termination of the restrictions, the class B common stock will be convertible into class A common stock
if transferred fo a persan that was not a Visa Member (as defined in the current certificate of incorporation) or similar person or an
affilizte of a Visa Member or similar person. Upon such transfer, each share of class B commaon stock will autematically corvert into
a number of shares of class A common stock based upon the applicable corversion rate in effect at the time of such transfer

Adjustrment of the conversion rate oeeurs upan: (i) the completion of any follow-on affering of class A commaon stock
compieted to increase the size of the litigation escrow account (or any cash deposit by the Company in lieu thereaf) resulting in a
further comesponding decrease in the conversion rate; or (i} the final resolution of the
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covered hiigation and the release of funds remaining on deposit in the litigation escrow account to the Company resulting in a
corresponding increase in the conversion rale

Class C common stock, As of September 30, 2014 | all of the shares of class C common stock have been released from
transfer restrictions, and 129 million shares have been corverted from class C to class A common stock upon their sale info the
public market

Freferred stock Preferred stock may be issued as redeemable or non-redeemable, and it has preference over any class of
common stock with respect to the payment of dvidends and distribution of the Company's assels in the event of a liquedation or
dizsolution, The Company had no shares of preferred stock outstanding during and at the end of fiscal 2014 and 2013 |

Valing nghts. Holders of class A commen stock have the right to vote on all matters on which stockholders generally are
entitled to vote. Holders of classes B and C commen stock have no right to vote on any matters, except for certain defined matters,
including any consolidation, menger, combination or any decision to exit the core payments business, in which case the holders of
classes B and C common stock are entitied to cast a number of votes equal to the number of shares of classes B or C comman
siock held muttiplied by the applicable comversion rate in effect on the record date.

Dividenadls daclared. The Company declared and paid 31.0 billion in dividends in fiscal 2014 at a quarterly rate of $0.40 per
share. In October 2014, the Compamny's board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.48 per share of class &
comman stock (determined in the case of clags B and class C common stock on an as-comverted basis), which will be paid on
December 2, 2014 , to all holders of record of the Company's classes A, B and C common stock as of Movember 14, 2014

Note 15—Eamings Per Share
The following table presents earnings per share for fizcal 2014 "

Basic Earmings Per Share Diluted Earnings Per Share
{ir millions, except per share data)
Weighted- Welghted-
WV e ANITagE Earmings per [T Averae Eamings par
Allocation Shaiés Share = Alocation Elares Bhare =
()= Outstanding (8] {AJB) A} = Cutstanding {B) LAIAE)
Class A common steck £ 4307 498 £ g85 15 5438 631 ™ § BEX
Class B common stock o2 245 % 363 |5 £90 245 5 362
Class © common stock 222 28 5 &85 |8 4 6 s 862
Participating securities 17 Mot presented Mot presented % 16 Mot presented Not presented
Met income attributable to Visa Inc. 3 5438
The following fable presents earmings per share for fiscal 2013 .7
Basic Earmings Per Share Dituted Earnings Per Share
fin milions, excepd per dhare data)
e .:L E ine T‘mm
{A) = Ouistanding (B) (ANEB) A= Dutstanding {B) (AINE)
Class A common slock 5 3955 520 % 7.61 5 4930 g5 W 3 750
Class B comman stock TBE 245 5 3.20 5 T84 245 5 219
Class C comman stock 216 28 5 781 5 215 8 5 7.58
Participating securities 19 Mot presantad Mk presened 5 19 Nt pressnted Mot presanted
Net lncome aftibutable to Visa lnc. 5 4980
29
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The following table preserts earnings per share for fiscal 2012 "

Baslc Earmings Per Share Dituted Earmings Per Share
fim millons, excepl per share daa)
Weighted- Welghted-
e Average Eamnings per Intome Ayerage Eamnings per
Allocation Shares Share = Algcation Ehares Share =
A= Oidstanding [ 1AYI(B) ) = Gutstanding (B) LAINB)
Class A comman stock - 1,664 524 % 317 5 2144 678 @ § 316
Class B comman stock 343 245 5 1.40 -1 341 245 5 1.28
Class C common stock 130 41 5 347 3 129 41 -] 316
Participating securities 7 Mot presented Mot presented 3 7 Mot presented hot presented
Net income aftributable to Visainc. 5 2144

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Eamings per share is calculated based on unrounded numbers
Met income attributable to Visa Inc. is allocated based on proportional ewnership on an as-comerted basis. The weighted-
average numbers of shares of as-corverted class B common stock used in the income allocation were 103 million for fiscal 2014
and 2013 , and 108 million for fiscal 2012

Weighted-average diluted shares cutstanding are calculated on an as-converted basis, and include incremental common stock
equivalents, s caleulated under the treasury stock method. The computation includes 2 million comman stock equivalents for
fiscal 2014 and 2013 , and 3 million for fiscal 2012 | because their effect would have been dilutive. The computation excludes
less than 1 million of comman stock equivalents for fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 because their effect would have been anti-
dilutive

Participating securnties are unvested share-tased payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend
equivalents, such as the Comparny's restricled stock awards, resiricted stock units and earned performance-based shares.

]

Note 16—Share-based Compensation

The Cormpany's 2007 Equity Incentive Compensalion Plan, or the EIP, autharizes the compersation commites of the board of
directors to grant non-gualified stock options ("ophions"), restricted stock awards ["RSAS"), restricted stock units ("RSUs") and
performance-based shares to its employees and non-employes directors, for up fo 58 million shares of class A common stock
Shares available for award may be either authorized and unissued or previously issued shares subsequently acquired by the
Campany. The EIP will continue to be in affect urtil all of the common stock available under the EIP is deliverad and all restrictions
on those shares have lapsed, unless the EIP is terminated earlier by the Company's board of directors. Mo awards may be granted
under the plan on or after 10 years from its effective date.

Share-based compensation cost is recorded net of estimated forfeitures on a straight-line basis for awards with service
conditions only, and on a graded-vesting basis for awards with service, perfformance and market conditions. The Company's
estimated forfeiture rate is based on an evaluation of historical, aciual and trended forfeiture data. For fiscal 2014 | 2013 | and
2012 | the Company recorded share-based compensation cost of 172 million , 3179 million and 5147 million , respectively, in
personnel on its consolidated statements of operations. The amount of capitalized share-based compensation cost was immaterial
during fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 .

Options

Options issued under the EIP expire 10 years from the date of grant and vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant,
subject to earlier vesting in full under certain conditions.
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Cuning fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 | the fair value of each stock option was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes oplion pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

014 2013 2012
Expected term {in years) " 4.80 6.08 5.02
Risk-free rate of return 1.3% 0.8% 1.2%
Expected volatility ™ 25.2% 208.3% 34.5%
Expected dividend yield ™' 0.8% 0.9% 0.9%
Fair value per oplion granted $ 4411 S 3W03 £ 2965

"' Beginning in fiscal 2014, assumplicn is based on the Company's historical opion exercises and those of a set of peer
companies that management believes is generally comparable to Visa. The Company's data is weighted based on the number
of years between the measurement date and Visa's initial public offering as a percentage of the options' contractual term. The
relative weighting placed on Visa's data and peer data in fiscal 2014 was approximately 58% and 42% , respectively. In fiscal
2013 and 2012, assumption was fully based on peer companies’ data,

# Based upon the zem coupon US. treasury bond rate over the expected term of the awands.

" Based on the Company's implied and historical volatility. In fiscal 2013 and 2012, historical volatility was a blend of Visa's

hastorical volatility and those of comparable peer companies. The relative weighting bebween Visa historical volatility and the

historical wvolatility of the pesr companies was based on the percentage of years Visa stock price information is available since its

initial public offering compared to the expected term, The expected volatilites ranged from 22% to 26% in fiscal 2014

Based on the Compary's annual dividend rate on the date of grant,

i

The following table summarizes the Company's option activity for fiscal 2014

Walghted-
Average
Walghted- Remaining Aggregate
Avarage Coniraciual Intrinsic
Exerclse Price Term Valus ™
Opitlons Par Shara {in yoars) fir millions)
Outstanding at October 1, 2013 38917206 & 2.2
Granted 435025 S 201.37
Forfeited (116,261) § 150.56
Exercised (1323540 % 68.45
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 2912426 a0.08 54 5359
Options exercisable at September 30, 2014 2181758 3 63.03 43 5328
Options exercisable and expected to vest at
September 30, 2014 2832053 S a87.79 53 356

" Cakoulated using the closing stock price on the last rading day of fiscal 2014 of 5213.37 , less the option exercise price,
multiplied by the number of instruments.

iﬂ.pplie-s a forfeiture rate to unvested options outstanding at September 30, 2014 to estimate the number expected to vest in the
uture,

Far the options exercised during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 | the total intrinsic value was $187 million , 3176 million and 3247
million , respectively, and the tax benefit realized was 363 million , 359 million and $86 million , respectively. As of September 30,
2014 | there was 317 million of tofal unrecognized compensation cost related to urvested options, which is expected fo be
recognized over a weighted-average period of approvimately 1.4 years

Resiricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

RSas and RSUs issued under the EIP primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to earlier vesting in
full under certain conditions.
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Upon vesting, the RSAs are seftled in class A comman stock on a ene-for-one basis. During the vesting period, RSA award
recipients are eligible to receive dividends and participate in the same voting rights as those granted to the holders of the
undertying class A commeon stock. Upon vesting, RSUs can be seltled in class A commeon stock on a one-for-one basis or in cash,
or a combination thereaf, at the Campany's opion. The Company dees not currently intend to settle ary RSUs in cash. Durning the
vesting period, RSU award recipients are eligible to receive dividend equivalents, but o not participate in the voting rights granted
to the holders of the underlying class A common stock,

The fair value and compensation cost before estimated forfeitures for RSAs and RSUs is calculated using the closing price of
ciass A common stock on the date of grant, The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSAs granted during fiscal 2014 | 2013
and 2012 was $199.91 , $147.18 and $26.39 , respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUs granted during
fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $187.76 | $146.18 and 396 87 | respectively. The total grant-date fair value of RSAs and RSUs
vested during fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 was 5126 million , 538 million and $81 million , respectively.

The following table summarizes the Company's RSA and RSU activity for fiscal 2014

Walghted-
Average
Walghted- Remalning Aggregate
Avirage Contractual Intrinsic
Grant Date Term Walue ™
Restricted Stock Fair Value {in yaars} {im milllens)
Awrards Units RS5A RSU RSA RSU RSA RSU
Outstanding at October 1, 2013 1,897,981 B49882 S 11920 S 11545
Granted E09.015 226581 % 19991 5 19776
Vested (841,527) (317.343) S 10828 S 11118
Forfeited (156,923) (92.187) 5 15085 § 14167
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 1,308 546 466,733 £ 18000 S 15875 1.4 11 £279 %100

" Calculated by multiplying the closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2014 of $213.37 by the number of instruments.
At Seplember 30, 2014 | there was 3127 million and 335 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related o unvested

R3Az and RSUs, respectively, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average penod of approximately 1.4 years for
RESAs and 1.1 years for RSUs.
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The following table summarizes the maximum number of pedormance-based shares which could be earned and related
activity for fiscal 2014

Welghted-
Avarage
Walghted- Remalning Aggregata
Average Conbraciual Intringic
Grant Dada Term Walwe ™
Shares Fair Value [in years} (I milllons)
Qutstanding at October 1, 2013 450899 5 126.24
Granted & 278451 225.46
Vested and eamed (114514) & 85.05
Unearned — & _
Forfeited (105.028) S 177.01
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 518.810 g 177.28 08 5111

" Calculated by multiplying the closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2014 of $213.37 by the number of instruments.
“ Represents the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be samed

Faor the Company's performance-based shares, in addition to service conditions, the ultimate numiber of shares to be earned
depends on the achievernent of bath performance and market conditions. The performance condition is based on the Company’s
earnings per share target The market condition is based an the Compamy’s total share holder returmn ranked against that of other
companies that are included in the Standard & Poor's 500 Index. The fair value of the performance-based shares, incorporating the
market condition, is estimated on the grant date using 2 Monte Carlo simulation model. The grant-date fair value of performance-
based shares granted in fiscal 2004 | 2013 and 2012 was 3225.45 |, 3164.14 and 257 B4 per share, respectively. Earmned
performance shares granted in fiscal 2014 |, 2013 and 2012 vest approximately 3 years from the initial grant date. All performance
awands are subject to earlier vesting in full under certain conditions.

Compensation cost for peformance-based shares is initially estimated based on target performance. It is recorded net of
estimated forfeitures and adjusted as appropriate throughout the performance period. At Seplember 30, 2014 | there was 512
mitlion of tetal unrecognized compensation cost refated to urvested performance-based shares, which is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average penod of approximately 0.6 years.

Hote 17—Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments. The Company leases certain premises and equipment throughout the world with varying expiration dates. The
Company incurred total rent expense of $134 million , 394 million and $89 milien in fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012 |, respectivaly.
Future minimum paymenis on leases and marketing and sponsorship agreements per fiscal year, at September 30, 2014 | are as
follows

5 16 T 2018 2019 Tharsafter Total

{im milll ors)
Operating leases $ 76 3 8D & 3F & 2 5 230 § 118 & 353
Marketing and sponsorships B3 63 62 61 59 130 458
Total $159 $123 % 99 § 92 § 89 §$ 248 5 BN

Select sponsorship agreements require the Company to spend certain minimum amounts for advertising and marketing
pramation over the life of the contract. For commitments whare the individual years of spend are not specified in the contract, the
Company has estimated the timing of when these amounts will be spent. In addition ta the fixed payments stated above, select
sponsorship agreemeants require the Company to undertake marketing, promotional or other actvities up to stated maenetary values
to support events which the Company is sponsaring
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The stated monetary value of these activities typically represents the value in the marketplace, which may be significantly higher
than the actual costs incurred by the Company.

Chient incenfives. The Compary has agreements with financial institution clients and other business partners for various
pragrams designed (o build payments volume, increase Visa-branded card and product acceptance and win merchant routing
transactions, These agreements, with terms ranging from one to fifteen years, can provide card issuance and/or canversion
support, volurnel/growth targets and marketing and program support based on specific performance requirements. These
agreements are designed to encourage client business and to increase averall Visa-branded payment and transaction volume,
thereby reducing per-unit transaction processing costs and increasing brand awareness for all Viea clients,

Payments made that qualify for capitalization, and obligations incurred under these programs are reflected on the
consolidated balance sheet, Client incentives are recognized primarily as a reduction to operating revenue in the period the related
volumes and transactions occur, based on management's estimate of the client's performance in accordance with the terms of the
incentive agreement. The agreements may or may not limit the amount of client incentive payments.

The table below sets forth the expected future reduction of revenue per fiscal year for client incentive agreements In effect at
Septermber 30, 2014 :

{n milions) 2015 16 2017 2018 2019 Thersalter Total
Cliert incentives 32924 $2548 2917 H1852 51,162 § 1272 § 11685

The amount of client incentives necorded as a reduction of revenue in future periods under the Compamy's incentive
arrangements, will be greater or less than the estimates above due to changes in performance expectations, actual client
performance, amendments to existing contracts or the execution of new confracts. Based on these agreements, INGcreases in
incentive payments are generally driven by increased payment and transaction volume, and as a result, in the event incentive
payments excesd the above estimates, such payments are nod expecied to have a matenal effect on the Company's financial
condition, results of operations ar cash flows,

Mote 182—Related Parties

Wisa considers an entity to be a related party for purposes of this disclosure if that entity owns more than 10% of Visa's total
voting common stock at the end of the fiscal year, or if an officer or employee of that entity also serves on the Company's board of
directors. The Company considers an investee to be a related party if the Company’s: (i) ownership inferest in the investes is
greater than or equal to 10% or (i) if the investment is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. At September 30,
2014 and 2013 | no entity owned more than 10% of the Company's total voting common stock. There were no significant
transactions with related parties dunng fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012

Mote 18—Income Taxes

The Company's income before taxes by fiscal year consisted of the following:

2014 2013 012

{in millions)
us $ 8140 5 5007 & 1030
Man-U.S, 1,584 1,265 1177
Total income before taxes and non-controlling interest $ 7724 5§ 7257 3 2207

LS. income before taxes included $2.3 billion |, $2.0 billicn and $1.% billion of the Compamy's LS. entiies’ income from
operations outside of the UL.S. for fiscal 2014 | 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Income tax pravision by fiscal year consisted of the following:

Current:
LS. federal
State and local
Mon-U.S.
Total current taxes
Deferred:
LS. federal
State and local
MNon-L.S,
Total deferred taxes

Total income tax provision

2014 3 2012
[in milllons)

¥ 2368 § 968 5 1376

237 (58) 165
274 239 214
2,864 748 1,735

(576) 1401  (1,276)
{31] 114 (1 5}

29 13 1
(578) 1528 (1,690}

$ 2286 S 2277 3 65

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at

September 30, 2014 and 2013 | are presented below.

Deferred Tax Assets:
Accrued compensation and benafits
Comprehensive (income) loss
Inwestments injoint ventures
Accrued litigation obligation
Client incentives
Met operating loss carryforward
Tax credits
Federal benefit of state taxes
Other
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, equipment and technabogy, net
Intangible assets
Foreign laxes
Cther
Deferred tax habilities
Met deferred tax liabilities

2014 2013
[in millions)
$ 134 S 154
14 (8)
14 14
558 1
235 226
35 31
21 2
210 176
139 121
(34) (25)
1,326 712
(298) (310
(4,000) {4,003)
(125) (55)
(12) (12
{4.435) {4,380
S (3,108) S (3,668)
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Total net deferred tax assets and liabilties are included in the Company's consolidated balance sheets as follows:

Saplember 30, Saplember 30,

M4 2013
{in millions)

Current deferred tax assets 5 1028 % 451

Mon-current deferred tax lizbilities " (4,137) (4,145)

Met deferrad tax kabilties 5 (3,108) 3 [3,668)

" The 4.1 billion of non-current deferred tax liabilities at September 30, 2014 includes 28 million of non-current deferred tax
assels, which are reflected in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

The increase in the deferred tax asset for accrued litigation obligation reflects the deferred tax impact of the 1.4 billion net
increase in covered liigation accrual associated with the interchange multidistrict itigation. See Nole 3—Relrospeactiva
Respansibiity Flan and Note 20—Legal Matters

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is mare likely than not that all or some
portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporarny differences are deductible. The fiscal 2014 and
2013 valuation allowances relate primarily to foreign net operating losses from subsidiaries acquired in recent years.

As of September 30, 2014 | the Company had 516 million state and $154 million foreign net operating loss camyforwards, The
state net operating loss carmyforwards will expire in fiscal 2031 . The forgign net operating loss may be carned forward indefinitely
The Company expects to fully utilize the state net operating loss carnyforwands in future years

As of September 30, 2014 | the Compary also had federal and state research and developrment tax credit carndorwards of 52
million and $21 million , respectively. The federal carmyforwards will expire in fiscal 2029 | The state carnyforwards may be carried
forward indefinitely . The Company expects to realize the benefit of the credit carnyforwards in future years.

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. federal statutory
rate of 35% to pretax income, as a result of the following:

For the Years Ended September 30,
2014 J013 2z

Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Dallars Percant
{in milllons, excepl parcentages)

U8 federal income tax at statutory rate $ 2,704 3% 5 2540 3% 5 Fr2 35 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 129 2% 42 1 % 36 2%
Non-ULS, tax effect, net of federal benefit (278) (4% (328) {5)% (257) {12)%
Prior years LS, domestic production activities deduction (191) {2)% — — % — — %
Reversal of tax reserves related to the deductibility of

covered litigation expense s —% — — % (299) il
Remeasurement of deferred taxes due to

California state apporticnment nule changes - —~ — — % 208) (9)%
Cther, net (78) {1)% 23 — % 21 1%
Income tax provision $ 2,288 W% 5 2277 H% & 65 3%
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The effective income tax rate of 309 in fiscal 2014 differs from the effective income tax rate of 3136 in fiscal 2013 mainly due
b

= a3 5264 million tax benefit related to a deduction for U.S. domestic production activities, of wihich 191 million related to
prior fiscal years, as a result of the completion of a study in the second quarter of fiscal 2014, and
+  the absence of the following in fiscal 2014;
+  atax benefit recognized in fiscal 2013 as a result of new guidance issued by the state of California regarding
apportionment rules for years prior to fiscal 2012; and
+  certain foreign tax credit benefits related to prior years recognized in fiscal 2013,

The effective income tax rate of 31% in fiscal 2013 differs from the effective income tax rate of 3% In fiscal 2012 mainly due
by

» thie aforementioned tax benefit recognized in fizcal 20r3 as a result of new guidance issued by the state of California
regarding apportionment rules for years prior to fiscal 2012,
« certain foreign tax credit benefits related to prior years recognized in fiscal 2013, as mentioned above; and
+ the absence of the following in fiscal 2013
+ the fiscal 2012 reversal of previously recorded tax reserves associated with uncertainties related to the deductibility
of coverad liigation expense,
« a fiscal 2012 one-time, non-cash benefit from the remeasurement of existing net deferred tax liabilities due to the
changes in California apportionment rules adopted in that year, and
+ the effect of applying the aforementioned fiscal 2012 tax benafits to a fiscal 2012 pre-tax income that was reduced
by the 54.1 billion coverad liigation provisien,

Current income taxes receivable were 381 millien and 5142 million at September 30, 2014 and 2013 | respectively. Mon-
current income taxes receivable of 587 million were included in other assets at September 30, 2014 | See Note 5—Frapaid
Expenses and Other Assals . At September 30, 2004 and 2013 | income taxes payable of 373 million and 364 million | respectively,
wene included in accrued income taxes as part of accrued liabiities, and accrued income taxes of 3855 milion and 3453 million |,
respectively, were included in other long-term liabilities. See Note B—Accrued and Othar Liabilities |

Cumudative undistributed eamings of the Company’s internatioral subsidianes that are intended to be reinvested indefinitely
outside the United States amounted to $5.0 billion at September 30, 2014 . The amount of income laxes that would have resulted
had such eamings been repatnated is not practicabdy determinabie.

The Company's largest operating hub outside the United States 1s located in Singapaore, It operates under a tax incentive
agreement which is effective through September 30, 2023, and is conditicnal upon meeting certain business aperations and
employment thresholds in Singapare, The tax incentive agreement decreased Singapore tax by $168 million , 5158 million and
$130 million |, and the benefit of the tax incentive agreement an diluted earmings per share was 30,27 , 50.24 and 30.1% in fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012 | respectively.

In accordance with Accounting Sfandands Codification 740—Income Taxes , the Company is required to imventory, evaluate
and measure all uncertain tax positions taken or to be taken on tax returns, and to record liabilities for the amount of such positions
that may not be sustained, or may only partially be sustained, upon examination by the relevant taxing authonties.

At September 30, 2014 and 2013 | the Company's total gross unrecognized tax benefits were $1.3 billion and $1 billion |,
respectively, exclusive of interest and penalties described below, Included in the 1.3 billion and $1 billen are $1.1 bilkon and $801
million aof unrecognized tax benefits, respectively, that if recognized, weould reduce the effective tax rate in a future period.
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A reconciliation of beginming and ending unrecognized tax benefits by fiscal year is as follows:

204 2013
[In rditloms)
Beginning balance at October 1 $ 1023 5 6789
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to priar years 138 335
Decreases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prior years (54) (133)
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to current year 198 144
Reductions related to lapsing statute of limitations (4) (2}
Ending balance at September 30 ¥ 1,303 3 1033

Itis the Company's policy to account for interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in non-operating
income in its consolidated statements of operations, In fiscal 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized 310 million and $9 million of
interest expense, respectively, related to uncertain tax positions. Infizcal 2012 | the Company reversed 245 million of interest
expense related to uncertain tax positons, In fiscal 2014 | the Company acorued 52 million of penalties related to uncertain tax
positions. In fiscal 2013 and 2012 | the Company reversed 34 million and 31 million of penatties, respectively. At September 30,
2014 and 2013 , the Company had accrued interest of 339 million and $25 million , respectively, and accrued penalties of $5 millicn
and $3 million , respectively, related to uncertain tax positions in its other long-term liabilities.

The Company’s fiscal 2005, 2010 and 2011 U.S. federal income tax returns are currently under Internal Revenue Service
("IRS") examination, The Company has filed federal refund claims, mastly related to foreign tax credits, for fiscal years 2002
throwgh 2008, which are also currently under IRS examination. Except for such refund claims, the federal statutes of limitations
hawve expired for fiscal years pror to 2009, The Compamy's fiscal 2006, 2007 and 2008 Califorria tax returns are currently under
examination. Except for certain outstanding refund claims, the California statutes of limitations have expired for fiscal years prior to
2006, During fiscal 2013, the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA™) completed its examination of the Compary's fiscal 2003 through
2008 Canadian tax returrs and proposed cerfain assassments. Based on the findings of the examination, the CRA also proposad
certain assessments on the Company's fiscal 2010 through 2013 Canadian tax returns, The Compary has filed notices of objection
against these assessments and believes that its income tax provision adequately reflects its obligations to the CRA. The Campany
is also subject to examinations by various state and foreign tax authorities. All material state and foreign tax matters have been
concluded for years through fiscal 2002, The timing and outcame of the final resolutions of the federal, state and forgign tax
exarninations and refund claims are uncertain. As such, it is not reasonably possible to estimate the impact that the final cutcomes
could have on the Company's unrecognized tax benefits in the next 12 months.

Note 20—Legal Matters

The Company is party to various legal and reguiatory proceedings. Some of these proceedings invelve complax claims that
are subject to substantial uncerainties and unascertainable damages. Accordingly, except as disclosaed, the Company has not
established reserves or ranges of possible loss related to these proceedings, as at this time in the proceedings, the matters do not
refate to a probabie loss andfor the amount o range of losses are not reasonably estimable. Although the Company believes that it
has strang defenses for the litigation and regulatory proceedings described below, it could, in the future, incur judgments or fines or
enter into settlements of claims that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations
or cash flows. From time to time, the Company may engage in settlement discussions or mediations with respect to one or more of
its outstanding litigation matters, either on its own behalfl or collectively with other parties.

The litigation accrual is an estimate and is based on management's understanding of its litigation profile, the specifics of each
case, advice of counsel to the extent appropriate and management's best estimate of incurred loss as of the balance sheet date.
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The following table summanzes the activity related to accrued Itigation

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2012
{in millfons)
Balance at October 1 s 5 % 4,386
Reestablishment of obligaticn related to interchange multidistrict litigation 1,056 —
Additional provision for legal matters 453 3
Payments on legal matters (58) [4,384)
Balance at September 30 5 1,486 5 B

Covered Litigation

Visa Ing., Visa U.S A and Visa International are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the retrospective
responsibility plan, which the Company refers to as the covered litigation, See Note 3—Relrospective Responsibility Slan . An
accrual for the covered lifigation and a charge to the litigation provision are recorded when loss is deemed o be probable and
reasonably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information, including but nat limited to
actions taken by the litigation committee. The total acorual related to the covered litigation could be either higher or lower than the
escrow account balance,

The following table surmmarizes the activity related to covered litigation.

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2043
{in millions)
Balance at October 1 § — & 4,383
Reestablishment of obligation related to interchange multidistrict litigation 1,056 —
Additional provision for interchange opt-out litigation 450 —
Payments on covered ltigation {57} (4,383)
Balance at September 30 5 1,448 35 —_

The Company recorded an additional accrual of $4.1 balion for the covered litigation during fiscal 2012, which increased its
accrued balance for the covered Itigation from 3285 million to $4.4 billion . During fiscal 2013, pursuant to settlemant agreements
with the class and individual plaintiffs in the interchange multidistrict litigation, the Company paid approximately £4.0 billion and
350 million , respectively, from the litigation escrow account into settlement funds. Uinder the class settlement agreement, If class
members opt-out {the “opt-out mearchants") of the damages portion of the class seftlement, the defendants are entitied to receive
payments of no more than 25% of the onginal cash payments made into the settiement fund, based on the percentage of payment
card sales volume for a defined penod attnbutable to merchants whe opted out (the "takedown payments'). On January 14, 2014,
the court entered the final judgment order approving the settlement with the class plaintiffs in the interchange multidistrict litigation
praceedings, which is subject to the adjudication of any appeals. Takedown payments of approximately $1.1 billion were received
on January 27, 2014, and deposited into the Company's litigation escrow account The deposit inta the |itigaton escrow account
and a related increase in accrued litigation to address opt-out claims were recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2014, Inthe
fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, an addtional accrual of 5450 million associated with these opt-out claims was recorded and payments
totaling 257 million were made fram the litigation escrow account reflecting satilements with a number of individual opt-out
merchants, resulting in an accrued balance of $1.4 billion related to covered litigation as of September 30, 2014, See further
discussion bebow under Inferchange Opl-out Liligation and Note 3—Relfraspechive Responsibiity Plan

The Attridge Litigation

On December 8 2004, a compiaint was filed in California state court on behalf of an alleged class of consumers asserting
claims against Visa UL.5.A., Visa International and MasterCard. Visa Inc. was later added as a defendant The remaining claims in
this action, Affridge v. Visa US A Inc., et al | allege that Visa's bylaw 2.10{e)
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and MasterCard's Competitive Programs Policy, which prohibited their respective members from issuing American Express or
Discover cards, constitute unlawful restraints of trade under California’s Uinfair Competition Law, and seek restitution, injunctive
relief, and attormeys’ fees and costs

In the separate “Indirect Purchaser” Credit‘Debif Card Tying Cases , also pending in California state court {see below), an
appeals court reversed the trial court's approval of a settiemnent agreement, and the case was remanded to the trial court for
consideration of the faimess and adequacy of the settlement in light of the inclusion of the Aftndge claims in the release. The triaf
court subsequently granted final approval of a revised written selflement agreement. Objectors filed notices of appeal in the
CraditDebit Card Tying Cases and the Aftridge case. An appeals court affirmed the judgment approving the revised written
settlement agreement Certain objectors filed petitions for rehearing. The Aftridge case has been stayed pending final resclution of
those appeals.

Interchange Multidistrict Liigation (MDL)

Beqinning In May 2005, a senes of complaints (the majority of which were styled as class actions) were filed in U.S. federal
district courts by merchants against Visa U.S A | Visa International andfor MasterCard, and in some cases, certain Visa member
financial institutions. The compiaints challenged, among other things, Visa's and MasterCard's purporied setting of interchange
reimbursement fees, their "no surcharge” rules, and alleged tying and bundiing of transaction fees under the federal antitrust laws,
and, in some cases, certain state unfair competition laws. The Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order transferring
the cases to the LS. District Court for the Eastern District of Mew York for coordination of pre-trial proceedings in MOL 1720 A
graup of purparted class plaintiffs subsequently filed a Second Conmsolidated Amended Class Action Complaint which, tegether with
the compiaints brought by individual merchants, sought money damages alleged to range in the tens of billions of dollars (subject to
tretling), as well as attorneys' fees and inunctive relief. The class plamtiffs atso filed a Second Supplemental Class Action
Complaint agairst Visa inc. and certain member financial institutions challenging Visa's reorganization and IPO under the antitrust
laws and seeking unspecified money damages and declaratery and injunctive relief, including an order that the IPO be unwound.

The Company and the individual merchants whose claims were consolidated with the MOL (the “Individual Flaintiffs”) signed a
setflement agreement to resolve the Individual Plaintiffs' claims against the Company for approximately 5350 million . This payment
was made from the litigation escrow account on October 28, 2012, and the court has dismissed those claims with prejudice.

Inadditicn, Visa Inc, Visa U.S A, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated, MasterCard International Incorperated,
various LS. financial nstitubion defendants, and the class plaintiffs signed a settlement agreement (the "Settlement Agreement”) to
resolve the class plaintifis’ claims. The terms of the Setfement Agreement include, among other terms:

+ A comprehensive release from participating class members for liability arising out of claims asserted in the litigation,
and a further release to protect against fulure litigation regarding default interchange and the other US, rules at issue
ir the MDL;

Settlernent payments from the Compary of approximately 4.0 billion |

Distribution to class merchants of an amount equal to 10 basis points of default interchange across all credit rate
categones for a period of eight consecutive months, which otherwise would have been paid to issuers and which
effectvely reduces credit interchange for that period of time. The eight month perod for the reduction would begin
within 60 days after completion of the court-ordered period during which individual class members may opt out of this
settlement;

Certain modifications to the Compamy's rules, including modifications to permit surcharging on credit transactions
under certain circumstances, subject 1o a cap and a level playing field with ather general purpose card competitors,
and

Agreement that the Comparny will meet with merchant buying groups that seek to negotiate interchange rates
collectively.
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Cn December 10, 2012, Visa paid approximately $4.0 billion fram the litigation escrow account into a settlement fund
established pursuant to the Settlement Agreement.

On Janary 14, 2014, the court entered a final judgment order approving the settlement, from which a number of objectors
have appealed. Until the appeals are finally adjudicated, no assurance can be provided that the Company will be able to resolve the
class plaintiffs’ claims as contempiated by the Saftiernent Agreement, On January 27, 2014, Visa's portion of the takedown
payments nelated to the opt-out merchants (referenced above), which was calculated to be approximately 1.1 billion , was
deposited into the litigation escrow account.

Consumer Inferchange Litigalion

On December 16, 2013, a putative class action was filed in federal district court in California against certain financial
institutions alleging that they conspired to fix interchange fees and imposed other alleged restraints on compelition, The complaint
was filed an behalf of an alleged class of all Visa and MasterCard payment cardholders in the United States since January 1, 2000
Although no Visa enlity is narmed as a defendant, the complairt identifies Visa ULS A | MasterCard, and certain non-defendant
financial institutions as co-conspirators, and plaintiffs assert that they may seek leave to amend the complaint to add the co-
conspirators as defendants. Plaintiffs seek injunctive relief, attomeys’ fees and treble damages allegedly to compensate the
purparted class for more than $54.0 billion dollars in purparted overcharges imposed on them each year by defendants and their
alleged co-conspirators. The defendants have filed a motion to dismiss. The case has been transferred to MOL 1720,

Interchange Opt-out Litigation

Baginning in May 2013, more than 35 opt-out cases have been filed by hundreds of merchants in various federal district
courts, generally pursuing damages claims on allegations similar to those raised in MOL 17200 A number of the cases also include
allegations that Visa has monopolized, attempted to monopalize, andlor canspired to monopolize debit card-related market
segments, and one of the cases seeks an injunclion against the fiked acquirer netwark fee. The cases name as defendants Visa
Inc, Visa LS A, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated, and MasterCard Intermational Incorporated, although some also
imclude certain LS, financial institutions as defendants, Wal-Mart Stores Inc. and ifs subsidiaries have filed an opt-out complaint
that also adds Visa Europe Limited and Visa Europe Services Inc. as defendants. Visa has acknowledged and confirmed its
obligations to indemnify Visa Europe Limited and Visa Europe Services Inc. with respect to the claim against them in'Wal-Mart's
complaint.

Visa, MasterCanrd, and certain LS. financial institution defendants in MDL 1720 filed 2 complaint in the Eastern District of Mew
York against certain named class representative plaintiffs who had opted out or stated their intention to opt out of the damages
portion of the Settlement Agreement. In addition, Visa filed three more similar complaints in the Eastern District of Mew York against
Wal-Mart Stores Inc. against The Home Depot, Inc. and Home Depot WS A and against Sears Holdings Corparation. Al four
complaints seek a declaration that, from January 1, 2004 to Movember 27, 2012, the time period for which opt-outs may seek
damages under the Seltlement Agreement, Visa's conduct in, among other things, continuang to set default interchange rates,
maintaining its “honer all cards” rule, enforcing certain rules relating to merchants, and restructunng itsell, did nat violate federal or
state antitrust laws.

Visa and the other defendants in the opt-out cases in MOL 1720 filed a motion to dismiss the then-pending opt-out complaints
in MDL 1720. Vval-Mart and the named class representatives that are defendants in the declaratory judgment cases in MOL 1720
filed motions to dismiss the declaratory judgment complaints, and Visa filed a motion to dismiss Wal-Mart's complaint. All of these
motions to dismiss were denied

All the cases filed in federal court have been either assigned to the judge presiding over MOL 1720, or have been transferred
by the Judicial Panel on Multdistrict Litigation for inglusion in MOL 1720, The court has entered an order canfirming that fn re
Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Antitrust Litigation |, 1:05-md-01720-JG-J0 (E. DN Y.), includes (1) all
current and future actions transferred to MOL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigaten or other order of any court for
inclusion in coordnated or pretrial proceedings, and (2) all actions filed in the Eastern District of Mew York that anse out of
operative facts as alleged in the cases subject to the transfer orders of the Judicial Fanel on Multidistrict Litigation. Cases that are
transferred to or
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otherwise included in MDOL 1720 are covered litigation for purposes of the retrospective responsibility plan. See Note 53—
Relrospective Raesponsibility Piarn .

Visa has reached settlerment agreements with a number of merchants representing approximately 10% of the Visa-branded
payment card sales volume of merchants who opted out. The amount of the seftiements is not considered material to the
consalidated financial staternents,

A similar case has been filed by merchants in Texas state court, generally pursuing claims on allegations similar to those
raised in MDL 1720, On Seplember 19, 2014, the plantiffs in that case filed a motion for partial summary judgment regarding
standing,

While the Company believes that it has substantial defenses in these matters, the final outcome of individual legal claims is
inherenthy unpredictable. The Comparry could incur judgments, enter into settlements of revise its expectations regarding the
outeome of indnvidual opt-out claims, and such developments could have a matenal adverse effect on our financial results in the
period in which the effect becomes probable and reasonably estimable

Other Litigation
Tndirect Furchaser” Achions

From 2000 to 2004, complaints were filed on behalf of consumers in ninsteen different states and the District of Columbia
against Visa LLS A and MasterCard (and, in Califormaa, Visa International). The complaints allege, among ather things, that Visa
S A s "honor all cards” rule and a similar MasterCard rule violated state antitrust and consumer protection laws, and commeon
lanw, The claims in these class actions asserted that merchants, faced with excessive merchant discount fees, passed on some
portion of those fees to consumers in the form of higher prices on goods and services sold Fiaintffs seek money damages and
injunctive relief, Visa has been successful in the majonity of these cases, and has resolved the cases in all junisdictions but
Califarnia.

In California, in the consolidated CreditDebit Card Tying Casas, the court dismissed claims brought under the Cartwright Act,
but denied a similar motion with respect to Unfair Competition Law claims for unlawful, unfair andfor fraudulent business practices.
The parties agreed to settlement terms to resolve the dispute, which was granted final approval. The plaintiff in Affridge filed a
notice of appeal from the final approval order, as did other objectors to the settlement. An appeals court reversed the judgment
approving the setflement agreement, and the case was remanded to the trial court for consideration of the fairness and adequacy
of the settiement in kght of the inclusion of the Aftridge claims in the release. The parties subsequently agreed upon a revised
wiitten settlement agreement, which was granted final approval. An appeals court affirmed the judgment approving the revised
witten settlement agreement, and certain objectors filed petitions for reheanng.

Europaan Compeliion Proceadings

European Commission. On April 3, 2009, the Eurapean Commission ("EC") issued a Statement of Objections (“SO") to Visa
Europe, Viza Internaticnal and Yisa Inc. alleging a breach of European competition law, namely Article 81 of the European
Community Treaty and Article 53 of the European Economic Area Agreement (the "EEA Agreement”). The SO was directed to Visa
inc. and Visa International with respect to the “honor all cards” rule, the “no-surcharge” rule, and certain consumer card interchange
fee practices.

In 2010, Visa Europe announced an agreement with the EC to end the procesdings with respect to Visa Europe’s debit
interchange fees, The EC concluded that the proposed agreement with Visa Europe addressed its competition concems, made the
agreement legally binding upon Visa Europe, and closed its investigation with regard to interchange fees for consumer debit card
transactions.

Cm July 31, 2012, the EC announced a supplementary Staternent of Objections ("S50") that was sent to Visa Europe
conceming interchange for consumer credit card transactions; and, on March 8, 2013, a redacted version of the S50 was served
on Visa Inc. and Visa International. The 580 alleges a breach of Article 101 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European
Union and Article 53 of the EEA Agreement. Among other things, the S50 asserts claims jointly against Visa Europe, Visa Inc., and
Visa International, objecting to domestic, cross-border, and inter-regional interchange, Visa Europe's rules relating to cross-barder
acquiring, and Viga Europe's point of sale rules.
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The 580 also announces the EC's intention to impose fines. The potential amount of any fine cannot be estimated at this time.

Cn February 26, 2014, the EC adopted a formal decision accepting Visa Europe’s commitments addressing domestic
interchange, cross-border interchange for credit card transactions within Europe, and cross-barder acquiring within Europe, and
made the commitments legally binding on Visa Europe. The EC continues the proceedings in respect of inter-regional interchange
fees that apply to transactions invalving a Visa credit cardholder from oufside the Visa Europe territory and a merchart in the
European Economic Area (EEA). These interchange fees are set by Visa Inc.

UK. Merchant Litigabon . Since July 2013, approximately 20 merchants (together with subsidiany/affiliate companies) have
commenced proceedings against Visa Europe (used in this UK. Merchant Litigation saction to denote Visa Europe Limited andfor
relevant subsidiary/affiliate companies), Visa Inc. and Visa International relating to interchange rates in Europe, and seek damages
for alleged anti-competitive conduct pnmarly in relation to UK. domestic andfor Irish domestic andfor intra-EEA interchange fees
for credit and debit cards. After a successful application for summary judgment, the claims of most merchants were limited to the &
year pericd immediately preceding the issuance of each claim. These merchants intend to apply for permission to appeal.

In addition, since March 2013, apprecimately 20 additional mercharts (together with subsidiaryfaffiliate companies) have
threatened to commence proceedings against Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and Visa International with respect to interchange rates in
Europe, Visa Eurepe, Visa Inc, and Visa International entered into standstill agreements with respect to a majornty of thosa
merchants' claims. While the amaunt of interchange being challenged could be substantial, these claims have not yet been filed
and their full scaope is not yet known,

Altogether, therefore, merchants accounting for more than 30% of ULK. retail sales have either filed claims or preserved their
right to do so. The amount of interchange being challenged is substantial. Although not all of the merchant claims have been
served and thus the full scope of the claims is not yet known, and there are substantial defenses to these claims, the total damages
sought in the claims that have been served exceed several billion dollars.

Visa Europe s obligated to indemnify Visa Inc. and Visa International in connection with the European Competition
Proceedings, in our opinion, including payment of any fines or damages that may be imposed. However, Visa Europe has informed
Visa Inc. of its position that it is not obligated to indemnify Visa Inc. or Visa Intermational for amy claim in the European Competition
Froceedings, including claims asserted in either the European Commission matter or the filed or unfiled claims in the LK. Mercharit
Litigation. Visa Inc. continues to firmly balieve that Visa Europe is obligated to indemnify for 2l such claims. While the parties are
not currently in non-binding arbitration, bath parties have initiated the execulive engagement aspect of the dispute resolution
procedure cortemplated by the Framework Agreement 1o resolve their dispute regarding this indemnification issue,

Canadian Compelition Proceadings

Merchant Litigation . Beginning in December 2010, a number of purported civil follow-on cases to the Competition Bureau's
proceeding were filed in Quebec, Brtish Columbia, Ontario, Saskatchewan, and Alberta against Visa Canada, MasterCard, and ten
financial institutions on behalf of purported classes of merchants and others that accept payment by Visa and MasterCard. In
Saskatchewan, a separate action was filed against Visa Canada Corporation and Visa Inc., two MasterCard entities, and a number
of smaller Canadian issuing banks that are not named as defendants in any of the existing proceedings. The purported class action
lawsuits allege conduct contrary to Section 45 of Canada’s Competition Act and also assert claims of civil conspiracy, interference
with econamic interests, and unjust enrichment, amang others. Plaintiffs allege that Visa and MasterCard each conspired with their
member financial institutions to set supra-competitive default interchange rates and merchant discount fees, and that Visa and
MasterCard's respective "no-surcharge” and "honor all cards" policies had the articompetitive effect of increasing mercharnt
discourt fees

Cn March 26, 2014, the British Columbia Supreme Court, in Watson v. Bank of America Corporation, et al. | granted the
plaintiffs" application for class certification in part, allowing plaintiffs to proceed as a class on, among other claims, claims for price
fixing under Canada's Competition Act. Both plaintiff and defendants are appealing aspects of the cerification decision to the British
Columbia Court of Appeal. The lawsuits in Quebec, Ontario,
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Alberta, and Saskatchewan are either being held in abeyance or are effectively stayed pending further proceedings in the British
Columbia lawsuit

The pending Canada Merchant Litigation lawsuits largely seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief, but some
allege substantial damages.

Dynamic Currency Conversion

Cn February 4, 2013, following an investigation into Visa's policies relating to the provision of Dynamic Currency Conversion
(DCC), the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission ("ACCC") commeanced proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia
against Visa Inc., Visa US A VAWPL, and Visa AP (Australia) Pty Limited alleging that certain Visa policies related to the provision
of DCC services confravenad Australian competition law, The ACCT ater filed an amendead claim adding Visa International as a
respondent, DCC refers to conversion from one currency to anather, either of the price of gaods or services by the merchant, or of
cash withdrawals by an ATM. Among ather things, the ACCC alleges that: (1) from May 2010 to Qctober 2010, Visa prohibited DCC
services with respect to transactions on Visa infernational payment cards conducted at Australian menchant outlets that had not
previously been conducting DCC transactions,; and (2) from at keast May 2007, Visa prohibited DCC services with respect to cash
withdrawals at Australian ATMs on Visa international payment cards. The ACCC seeks declaratory relief and a monetary penalty
The potential amount of any penalty cannot be estimated at this time.

Data Pass Litgation

Cn Movember 19, 2010, a consumer filed an amended class action complaint against Webloyalty.com, Inc., Gamestop
Carparation, and Visa Inc. in federal district court in Connecticut, The plaintiff claims, amang other things, that consumers who
made cnling purchases at merchants were deceived into also incurring changes for services from Vebloyaity com through the
alleged unauthorized passing of cardhalder account infermation during the sales transachion ("data pass"), in violation of federal
and state consumer protection statutes and commaon law. Visa allegedly aided and abetted the conduct of the other defendanis
Flaintiff seeks certification of a class of persons and entities whose credit card or debit card data was improperly accessed by
Wbloyalty. com since October 1, 2008, and seeks damages, restitution, and injunctive relief. \Webloyalty com, GameStop, and Visa
each filed motions to dismiss the amended complaint, which the court granted as to the claims that are grounded in fraud, The coun
reserved decision on whether all of the claims in the amended complaint are grounded in fraud, and granted plaintiff leave to file 2
further amended complaint. On August 15, 2014, plaintiff filed a second amended class action complaint against the same
defendarnts as in the amended complaint, asserting the same claims,

Koraan Fair Trade Commission

Follzwing a complaint lodged by a Visa client, in July 2011 the Korean Fair Trade Commission ("KFTC") intiated an
imvestigation into Visa's requirements for the processing of international transactions over VisaMet. The KFTC has the authority to
igsue an injunction or a finre. The potential amount of any fine cannot be estimated at this hme.

U5 ATM Access Fee Lifigalion

National ATM Council Class Action . On Cctober 12, 2011, the National ATM Council and thirteen non-bank ATM operators
filed a class action lawsuit against Visa (Visa Inc., Visa International, Visa UL.S.A., and Plus System, Inc.) and MasterCard in the
LIS, District Court for the District of Columbia. The complaint challenges Visa's rule (and a similar MasterCard rule) that if an ATM
operator chooses to charge consumers an access fee for a Visa or Flus transaction, that fee cannot be greater than the access fee
charged for transactions on other netwarks. Plaintiffs claim that the rule violates Section 1 of the Sharman Act, and seek damages
“in an amount not presently known, but which is tens of millions of dollars, prior to trebling,” injunctive refief, and attorneys’ fees.
Flaintiffs filed an amended class action complaint against the same defendants, also asserting that the ATM access fee rule
viclates Section 1 of the Sherman Act. Plaintiffs request treble damages, injunctive relief and attormeys’ fees,

Consumer Class Actions . In October 2011, a purported consumer class action was filed against Visa and MasterCard in the
same federal court challenging the same ATM access fee rules. Two other purported consurmer
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class actions were also filed in October 20711 in the same federal court, and were later combined into a single amended complaint
which challenges the same ATM access fee rules and names Visa, MasterCard and three financial institutions as defendants.
These consumer class achions purpar o represent classes and sub-classes of consumers in claims brought under Section 1 of the
Sherman Act, and also allege claims under antitrust andfor consumer pratection statutes in certain states and the District of
Columbia. The lawsuits seek injunctive relief, attormeys' fees, treble damages, and restitution where available under state law,

On February 13, 2013, the court granted the defendants’ mations to dismiss the complaints in the National ATM Council class
action and the consumer class actions, and dismissed the cases without prejudice. The LS. District Court for the District of
Columbia subsequently denied plaintiffs’ mations for leave to file amended complaints in the National AT Council class action and
the consumer class actions, and denied plaintiffs’ motions for an order altering or amending the court's February 13, 2013
judgrnent. Plaintiffs filed notices of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Cireist

U5 Departmant of Justice Civil Investigative Damand

On March 13, 2012, the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice (the * Division ™ ) issued a Civil
Irvestigative Demand, or * CID, " to Visa Inc. sesking documents and information regarding a potential violation of Section 1 or 2 of
the Sherman Act, 15 US.C 8§51, 2. The CID focuses on PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa's compefitive responses to the
Dodd-Frank Act, including Visa's fixed acquirer netwaork fee. Visa is cooperating with the Division in connection with the CID,

Fadaral Trada Commission Volunlary Access Letlar

Cn September 21, 2012, the Bureau of Competition of the United States Federal Trade Commission (the * Bureau * )
requested that Visa provide on a voluntary basis documents and information regarding potential violations of certain reguiations
associated with the Dodd-Frank Act, particularly Section $20(b)(1)(B) of the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C. 16530-2, and
Regulation |1, 12 CF.R. § 235.7(b) (commonly known as the "Durben Amendmert” and regulations). The request focuses on
infarmation related to the purposes, implementation, and impact of the optional PIN Debit Gateway Service. The revenue generated
by the PIN Debit Gateway Senvice is not matenal to the Company's financial statements, Visa is cooperating with the Bureau and
responding fo s information requests,

Consumar Financial Profection Bureau

Cn February 7, 2013, Visa received a letter from the Consurmer Financial Protection Bureau | * CFFPE " ) seeking documents
and information, on a voluntary basis, regarding Visa's practices with respect o the conversion of U.S. cardholder foreign
transactions from forsign currency into LS. dollars. On November 6, 2014, the CFPE notified Visa that it had completed its
imvestigation and did not intend to recommend taking enforcement action against Visa

Target Data Bresch

On March 3, 2014, a purported class action was filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of Litah against Target, Visa and
MasterCard alleging, among other things, violations of Utah unfair competition law, imvasion of privacy, negligence and breach of
contract as a result of unauthorized access in Novemnber and December 2013 to certain persenal information and payment card
data stored by Target. The complaint also alleges that Visa and MasterCard uniawfully failed to implement chip technology in the
United States. The complaint seeks damages, restitution, injunctive relief and attorneys' fees. On April 4, 2014, the Judicial Panel
on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order conditionally transferring the action to an existing MOL related to the Target data breach
where Visa has not been a party inthe LS. District Court for the District of Minnesata, In re Target Carp. Customer Data Securnily
Breach Litigation , MOL Mo. 2522, Visa and MasterCard filed a mation to separate and remand the claims against them, or
alternatively, to remand the achon in its entirety. The maotion was granted, and the claims against Visa and MasterCard were
severed and remanded to the District of Utah, The case remains stayed
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Mote 21—Subsequent Events

In October 2014 | the Company's board of directors authorized a new 35.0 billion share repurchase program. See Nofe 14—
Stockholders’ Equity

In October 2014 | the Company's board of directors declared a dividend in the aggregate amount of 30,48 per share of class
A comman stock (determined in the case of class B and class C common stock on an as-converted basis), See Note 14—

Stockhoiders' Equity
106
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tatles show selected quarterly operating results for each guarter and full yvear of fiscal 2014 and 2013 for the
Company:

Cuarter Ended (unaudited) Fiscal Year
Sap. 30, Jun, M, Mar, 31, Dac, 31,
Visa Inc, 24 2014 214 2013 2014 Total
{In mdllons, except per share data)
Operating revenues $ 32X 5 315 5 3183 3 3155 & 12702
Operating income & 1582 & 2020 S 2048 5§ 2077 & 7697
Met income attributable to Visa Ine. 1073 % 13680 S 1598 5 1407 5 5438
Basic earnings per share
Class A common stock 3 Ml 297 '8 253 5 22 5 B.BS
Class B common stock 3 073 % 081 = 106 % 083 % 363
Class G common stock k3 e AT 5 253 5 227 3 B.B5
Diluted earnings per share
Class A common stock 3 172008 27 % 252 & 220 5 B.62
Clags B commeon stock % 072 % 08 = 1068 3 083 % 3,62
Class C common stock 5 172 & 247 % 252 & 220 % B.62
Cuarter Ended {unaudited) Flscal Year
Sep. 30, Jun, 30, Mar, 31, Doc. 31,
isa Ing, 2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 Total
{in millons, except per share data)
Operating revenues $ 2973 & 3001 5 295 5 2846 § 11,778
Operating income % 1,751 & 1828 % 1880 5 15800 5 7238
Met income attributable to Visa Inc. 5 1182 % 1225 % 12/ 5 1293 & 4880
Basic earnings per share
Class A common stock 3 1.86° % 1.83 % 183 & 194 8§ 7.61
Class B commaon stock 3 078 § 079 s 081 % 082 % 3.20
Class C comman stock - 186 § 189 % 103 5 194 § T.681
Diluted eamings per share
Class A comman stock 5 185 & 1688 5 182 & 193 § 7.58
Class B common stock - o7 3 0oyg 3 081 3 081 S 2.19
Class G common stock - 1.8 % 188 3 1892 % 193 & 7.50

"' Dwuring the fourth gquarter of fiscal 2014, we recorded a litigation provision of 5450 million and related tax benefits associated with
the interchange multidistrict Iitigation, which is covered by the retrospective responsibility plan. Monetary liabilities from
settliements of, or judgments in, the covered litigation will be paid from the litigation escrow account See Note 3—Refraspective
Responsibifity Slan and Nofe 20—Legal Matlters to cur consolidated financial statements.

107

224/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

21

20-

USGAAP
JGAAP
USGAAP
USGAAP JGAAP

@
USGAAP

JGAAP

@
USGAAP

JGAAP

225/238



®
USGAAP

JGAAP

4
USGAAP

JGAAP 20

®
USGAAP

JGAAP

226/238

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn



Q)
USGAAP [6))
€y

)
@

(b)
©
VIE

(a)VIE
(b)VIE

Q)
USGAAP

®
USGAAP

©®
USGAAP

@

VIE

VIE

227/238

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

VIE

VIE
VIE

50



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

26 25
2012 17

2013
2013

228/238



30

229/238

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

32 26

2014 2037 12 31 20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
2014 2037 12 31
15.315 2038 15
2003
2009
2014 2037 12 31
15.315 2038
15

2009 2016

230/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2013 10

2014 28
2014 27
2015

19

231/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

232/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013 30 2014 30

2014 30
2014 11 20

/s/

2015 26

233/238



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Visalnc.:

We consent to the inclusion in this Securities Report on Form 8 of Visa Inc. filed with the Kanto Local
Finance Bureau of our report dated November 20, 2014, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of
Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2014and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended September 30, 2014, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Visa

Inc. as of September 30, 2014, and to the reference to our firm under the caption “Section VI. -Financial
Conditions’ in this Securities Report.

/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
March 26, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Visalnc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2014.
We aso have audited Visa Inc.’s internal control over financia reporting as of September 30, 2014, based on
criteriaestablished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Visa Inc.’s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s interna control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated
financia statements included examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended September 30,
2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Visa Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of September 30,
2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
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